
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

JULY 8, 2013 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, 
communications and recommendations that accompany your 
agenda.  Also included are suggested or requested resolutions 
and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been 
prepared by department directors and staff members.  I am 
indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight and professional 
advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as 
your deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 8, 2013 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Associate Pastor Jeremy Durrant from Troy Assembly of God 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 39th Annual Troy Garden Club’s Garden Walk (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart) 1 

C-2 Proclamation Celebrating Parks & Recreation Month – July, 2013 (Introduced by: 
Carol Anderson) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 2 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 3 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

H-1 No Postponed Items 3 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments - None 3 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 
Council Nominations – Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee, Zoning 
Board of Appeals 3 

I-3 No Request for Closed Session 6 

I-4 Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) Sustainable Community 
Recognition Program (Introduced by: Stephanie Dilworth) 6 

I-5 Rescind and Re-Award Catering Contract for Community Center Events 
(Introduced by: Carol Anderson) 7 

I-6 Contract Ratification – American Federation of State, County and Municipal 
Employees (Introduced by: Peggy Sears) 9 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 9 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 9 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 9 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 10 

a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – June 17, 2013 ......................................... 10 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 10 



 

 

a) Proclamation Celebrating Parks & Recreation Month – July, 2013 .................... 10 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 10 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – 
3545 Rochester Road and Colebrook ................................................................ 10 

J-5 Waiver of Bid for Purchase of Grounds Maintenance Equipment 10 

J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Pine 
Creek Ridge Site Condominiums – Project No. 03.907.3 11 

J-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – June 19, 2013 11 

J-8 Resolution to Schedule Public Hearing on Proposed Amendments to Troy 
Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) Development and Tax Increment 
Financing Plan 11 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 12 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 12 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 12 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 13 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 13 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 13 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 13 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 13 

O. REPORTS: 13 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Traffic Committee-Final-April 17, 2013 ............................................................... 13 
b) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final-May 28, 2013 .................................. 13 
c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-June 5, 2013 .......................................... 13 



 

 

d) Planning Commission-Draft-June 11, 2013 ........................................................ 13 
e) Planning Commission-Final-June 11, 2013 ........................................................ 13 

O-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) Building Department Activity Report – May, 2013 .............................................. 13 
b) Parks and Recreation Month Report .................................................................. 13 

O-3 Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) To Glenn Lapin and Paul Evans from Larry Chiapelli, Owner of Gramma’s 
Gardens .............................................................................................................. 13 

b) To Chief Mayer from Maureen Rider for Assistance in Handling a Complaint ... 13 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 13 

O-5 Notice of Hearing for the Customers of DTE Electric Company – Case No. U-
17302 13 

O-6 Charlene Femminineo v City of Troy et. al. 13 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 13 

P-1  No Study Items 13 

Q. CLOSED SESSION: 13 

Q-1 No Closed Session Requested 13 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 14 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 15 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, July 22, 2013 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 15 
Monday, August 12, 2013 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 15 
Monday, August 26, 2013 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 15 
Monday, September 9, 2013 Regular Meeting ...................................................... 15 
Monday, September 23, 2013 Regular Meeting .................................................... 15 
Monday, October 7, 2013 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 15 
Monday, October 21, 2013 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 15 
Monday, November 11, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 15 
Monday, November 25, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 15 
Monday, December 2, 2013 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 15 



 

 

Monday, December 16, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 15 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Associate Pastor Jeremy Durrant from Troy Assembly of God 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Dane Slater 

Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Ed Pennington 
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of            at the City 
Council Special Meeting and the Regular City Council Meeting of July 8, 2013, due to 
          . 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 39th Annual Troy Garden Club’s Garden Walk (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart) 
 
C-2 Proclamation Celebrating Parks & Recreation Month – July, 2013 (Introduced by: 

Carol Anderson) 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 2 - 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent Agenda or Study 
items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the 
Public Comment for Items On the Agenda portion of the Agenda. 

• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as permitted under the Open 
Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda portion of the 
Agenda. 

• All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide 
his or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). 
If the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then 
the speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City 
Council members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 
The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 

The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather 
than to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is 
required to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start 
of the meeting. There are two Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the 
Agenda, speakers can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent Agenda, 
or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Speakers can sign up to address all other 
topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in 
front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there is one minute of speaker time remaining, and 
turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 3 - 

In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments 
about any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, 
including having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the 
deletion of speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be 
careful to avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and 
defamation.   
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum 
befitting this great City. 
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments - None 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
b) City Council Appointments:  None 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 

Council Nominations – Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee, Zoning 
Board of Appeals 

 
a) Mayoral Nominations:  None 
 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 4 - 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 

Ehlert Max K. 11/15/2013 1/31/2015  
Godlewski W. Stan 12/14/2012 1/31/2014 Requests Reappointment 
Hall Patrick 12/12/2014 1/31/2016  
Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 1/31/2016  
Oberski Jeff    
Pappas Jesse 6/5/2014 7/31/2013 Student Rep. 
Payne Timothy P. 2/8/2014 1/31/2015  
Scherlinck Eun Joo Andrea 6/11/2014 7/31/2013 Student Rep. 
Ukrainec Bohdan 12/23/2012 1/31/2014  
Vacancy   1/31/2015 David Ogg Resigned 

 

 
Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015  
 Term currently held by: Vacancy – David Ogg Resigned 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Binkowski Matthew 5/7/2015  

 

 
Traffic Committee 

Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Binkowski Sarah 1/16/2015 1/31/2016   
Halsey Lawrence Ted 11/29/2013 1/31/2015   

Huotari William   Ex-Officio 
Member  

Kilmer Richard A. 12/23/2012 1/31/2014   



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 5 - 

Mayer Gary   Ex-Officio 
Member  

Nelson William   Ex-Officio 
Member  

Petrulis Al 6/11/2014 1/31/2014  ACAB exp 9/30/2015 
Popovic Stevan 5/29/2014 1/31/2016   
Vacancy   1/31/2015  David Ogg Resigned 
Ziegenfelder Peter F. 12/14/2012 1/31/2014   

 

 
Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015  
 Term currently held by: Vacancy - David Ogg Resigned 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume 

Expire 
Notes 2 

Apahidean Olimpiu (Ollie) 3/14/2014  
Brandstetter Tim 5/1/2015  
Chambers Barbara A. 4/30/2014 Historic Dist exp 3/1/2014; Hist Dist Study-Ad Hoc 
McGee Timothy S. 8/13/2014  

 

 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Bloomingdale Bruce 1/20/2014 4/30/2015  Hist Dist Study: Ad Hoc 
Clark Glenn 5/31/2014 4/30/2015   
Courtney Kenneth 2/25/2015 4/30/2016   
Eisenbacher David 11/14/2013 4/30/2016   
Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 3/5/2015 1/31/2015 Alternate P&R Bd exp 9/30/2015 
Kneale A. Allen 3/9/2013 4/30/2014  ZBA exp 4/30/14 
Krent Thomas G. 12/13/2014 12/31/2013 (PC Rep)  
Lambert Dave 1/8/2015 4/30/2014  Requests 

Reappointment 
Vacancy   1/31/2015 Alternate  

 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 6 - 

Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015  (Alternate) 
 Term currently held by: Vacancy–David Eisenbacher Resigned 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Binkowski Matthew 5/7/2015  
Brandstetter Tim 5/1/2015  
Chambers Barbara A. 4/30/2014 Historic Dist exp 3/1/2014;  

Hist Dist Study-Ad Hoc 
Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 Liquor Advisory Comm. exp. 1/31/2013 
Kempen Edward 2/1/2014 Planning Comm exp 12/31/2013 
Krent Thomas G. 12/13/2014 Planning Commission exp. 12/31/2013 
Manek Ashish 5/23/2015  
Ragan John 1/26/2014  

 

 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 
I-3 No Request for Closed Session  
 
I-4 Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) Sustainable Community 

Recognition Program (Introduced by: Stephanie Dilworth) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council seeks to improve the long term sustainability of our community; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council seeks to achieve economic prosperity while protecting the 
environment and providing a high quality of life for residents; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council seeks to inform residents about innovative initiatives being 
implemented in our community; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council seeks to maximize SEMCOG membership dues by using 
services available to member local governments; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 7 - 

WHEREAS, SEMCOG assists local governments in Southeast Michigan by making them more 
efficient and effective, and  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DETERMINES it to be in the 
public’s best interest to APPROVE a commitment to participate in the SEMCOG Community 
Recognition Program, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES William Huotari as 
the primary contact from our community for this program; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of 
contract documents and all other specified requirements; 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the documents on behalf of the Troy City Council. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 
I-5 Rescind and Re-Award Catering Contract for Community Center Events 

(Introduced by: Carol Anderson) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
a)  WHEREAS, On May 9, 2011, Troy City Council awarded a contract to provide catering 

services at the Troy Community Center for three (3) years with an option to renew for three 
additional years to Encore Catering of Troy, MI, the caterer with the highest score and rate 
of return, (Resolution #2011-05-093); and 
 
WHEREAS, Encore Catering has requested termination of their contract due to economic 
hardship effective July 31, 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, Encore Catering has agreed to the attached Assignment of Existing Agreement 
between the City and Kosch Hospitality, LLC.    
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That contingent upon the execution of the attached 
Assignment of Existing Agreement between the City and Kosch Hospitality LLC, Troy City 
Council hereby RESCINDS WITH PREJUDICE the contract with Encore Catering.   Any 
rescission of the Agreement does not excuse Alpha-Doni, Inc. from the requirement to pay 
all outstanding amounts due and owing through to the effective date of the rescission, and 
these amounts must be paid by Alpha-Doni, Inc. within ninety (90) days or the City will 
exercise its rights under the Agreement and the City of Troy’s bid policy; and  

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 8 - 

b)  WHEREAS, Kosch Hospitality LLC participated in the original request for proposal process 
in 2011 for Catering Services at the Community Center and finished second when the 
pricing model was added to the final score; and  
 
WHEREAS, Kosch Hospitality LLC agrees to the Assignment of the Existing Agreement 
between the City and Alpha-Doni, Inc d/b/a Encore Catering, dated June 14, 2013, and will 
pay the City 10% of gross receipts with a guaranteed minimum payment of $12,000.00 per 
year with a five-year renewal;   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RE-AWARDS AND 
ASSIGNS the catering contract that would have expired in August of 2014 to Kosch 
Hospitality, LLC under the terms and conditions of the Assignment dated June 14, 2013, to 
commence August 1, 2013 with a renewal for five (5) additional years through July 31, 
2019, so long as the caterer is in good standing.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon caterer’s submission 
of properly executed Agreement and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the agreement when in acceptable form; and 

 
c)  WHEREAS, The City of Troy has entered into an Agreement with Kosch Hospitality, LLC to 

provide catering and banquet services at the City owned and operated Troy Community 
Center; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Agreement requires Kosch Hospitality, LLC to have the ability to serve 
alcohol at the Troy Community Center as part of the catering services; which requires a 
liquor license  from the Michigan Liquor Control Commission; and  
 
WHEREAS, Kosch Hospitality, LLC is willing and intends to submit the required 
documentation and paperwork to be considered for a municipal civic center liquor license 
under MCL 436.1509; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is willing to support the request of Kosch Hospitality, LLC to be 
the sole liquor licensee for the Troy Community Center banquet and catering operations, in 
accordance with the provisions of MCL 436.1509; and  
 
WHEREAS, Under MCL 436.1509, any such municipal civic center liquor license is not 
considered transferrable property of the licensee, and therefore if the Agreement between 
the City of Troy and Kosch Hospitality, LLC. is terminated, then the municipal civic center 
liquor license would be surrendered, and could be transferred to subsequent caterers at the 
Troy Community Center in accordance with State and local laws and regulations.     
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Kosch Hospitality, LLC HAS BEEN 
SELECTED as the caterer for the City owned Troy Community Center, and HAS ENTERED 
into an Agreement with the City of Troy for those services, which include the potential sale 
of alcohol on the premises; and  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council REQUESTS the Michigan Liquor 
Control Commission issue a municipal civic center liquor license under the provisions of 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 9 - 

MCL 436.1509 to Kosch Hospitality, LLC., for catering and banquet operations at the Troy 
Community Center, located at 3179 Livernois, Troy, MI 48084. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to 
execute any documents that are required to effectuate the application by Kosch Hospitality, 
LLC for a municipal civic center liquor license under the provisions of MCL 436.1509.    

 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 
I-6 Contract Ratification – American Federation of State, County and Municipal 

Employees (Introduced by: Peggy Sears)  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the tentative agreement that has been reached between the City of Troy and 
AFSCME for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2016 is hereby RATIFIED by the City 
Council of the City of Troy, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
final agreement. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 10 - 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – June 17, 2013 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 
a) Proclamation Celebrating Parks & Recreation Month – July, 2013 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – 3545 

Rochester Road and Colebrook 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to sell surplus real estate parcel located at 3545 Rochester Road 
and identified with Sidwell #88-20-277-027, is hereby AWARDED to the highest bidder, Petrit 
Skenderaj, for $181,000.00, as listed on the attached bid tabulation opened June 21, 2013, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Engineering Department may EXPEND the necessary 
funds for title insurance and recording, to be taken from the proceeds of said sale, to close and 
record this real estate parcel; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE a Warranty Deed on behalf of the City of Troy to be delivered at closing; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
Warranty Deed, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-5 Waiver of Bid for Purchase of Grounds Maintenance Equipment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding procedures and 
AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to purchase six (6) pieces of TORO grounds maintenance 
equipment from Spartan Distributors of Auburn Hills, Michigan for an estimated total cost of 
$209,544.58; utilizing the MiDeal Contract #071B200329 and Billy Casper Contract pricing; as 
detailed in the attached tabulation which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 11 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates, and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Pine 

Creek Ridge Site Condominiums – Project No. 03.907.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Maurizio Gennari, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer and soil erosion and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – June 19, 2013  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
 
Item #4 – Request for Traffic Control – English at Windmill 

 
RESOLVED, That the intersection control be MODIFIED from “no traffic control” to a Stop sign 
on the Windmill Drive northbound approach to English Drive.  
 
J-8 Resolution to Schedule Public Hearing on Proposed Amendments to Troy 

Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) Development and Tax Increment 
Financing Plan  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07-      
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Act 197, Public Acts of Michigan, 1975, as amended (“Act 197”), and 
Ordinance 78 adopted by the City Council on July 12, 1993, the City Council created the 
Downtown Development Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”); and 
 
WHEREAS, To accomplish the purposes of Act 197, the DDA initially caused to be prepared 
and approved the DDA’s Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan (the “Plan”) and 
recommended approval of the Plan to the City Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, On December 13, 1993, the City Council, after notice and a public hearing on the 
Plan, adopted Ordinance 80, which approved the Plan, including the development area to 
which the Plan applies (the “Development Area”) in accordance with the requirements of Act 
197; and 
 
WHEREAS, Since 1993 the Plan has been amended in 1998, 2000, 2002 (twice) and 2007; 
and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 12 - 

 
WHEREAS, By resolution adopted June 19, 2013, the DDA approved and recommended to the 
City Council approval of further amendments to the Plan (the “2013 Plan Amendments”), in the 
form presented to this meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, The 2013 Plan Amendments amend the Plan to include (a) the extension of the 
duration of the Plan to December, 2033, (b) the removal of certain properties from the 
Development Area and (c) the issuance of bonds by the City to pay certain costs of the 
development program set forth in the Tax Increment Financing Plan included in the Plan and in 
connection therewith, refund bonds previously issued by the DDA for such purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Act 197, the City Council may consider the approval of the 2013 Plan 
Amendments after conducting a public hearing with respect thereto upon giving such notice as 
required by Act 197; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council desires to consider approval of the 2013 Plan Amendments and 
to set the time and date for a public hearing on the 2013 Plan Amendments and provide notice 
thereof as required by Act 197. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1. That a public hearing be HELD on Monday, August 12, 2013, at 7:30 p.m., local time, or 

as soon as possible thereafter, at the Troy City Hall to consider the approval of the 2013 
Plan Amendments. 

 
2. That the City Clerk is DIRECTED to publish, post and mail notice of such hearing, in 

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, in accordance with Section 18(1) of 
Act 197, and to take all other action necessary or desirable in connection with the public 
hearing. 

 
3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of 

this resolution be and the same are RESCINDED. 
 

Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 13 - 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Traffic Committee-Final-April 17, 2013 
b) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final-May 28, 2013 
c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-June 5, 2013 
d) Planning Commission-Draft-June 11, 2013  
e) Planning Commission-Final-June 11, 2013 
 
O-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building Department Activity Report – May, 2013 
b) Parks and Recreation Month Report 
 
O-3 Letters of Appreciation:  
a) To Glenn Lapin and Paul Evans from Larry Chiapelli, Owner of Gramma’s Gardens 
b) To Chief Mayer from Maureen Rider for Assistance in Handling a Complaint 
 
O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
O-5 Notice of Hearing for the Customers of DTE Electric Company – Case No. U-17302 
 
O-6 Charlene Femminineo v City of Troy et. al. 
 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 
P-1  No Study Items  
 

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 14 - 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 8, 2013 
 

- 15 - 

 
FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, July 22, 2013 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 12, 2013 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 26, 2013 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 9, 2013 ............................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 23, 2013 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 7, 2013 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 21, 2013 .............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 11, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 25, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 2, 2013 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 16, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING PARK AND RECREATION MONTH 

JULY 2013 
 
WHEREAS, Parks and Recreation programs are an integral part of communities throughout this 
country, including the City of Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Parks and Recreation Departments are vitally important to establishing and 
maintaining the quality of life in our community, ensuring the health of all citizens, and contributing to the 
economic and environmental well-being of the community and region; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parks and Recreation programs build healthy, active communities that aid in the 
prevention of chronic disease, provide therapeutic recreation services for those who are mentally or 
physically disabled, and also improve the mental and emotional health of all citizens; and  
 
WHEREAS, Parks and Recreation programs increase a community’s economic prosperity through 
increased property values, expansion of the local tax base, increased tourism, the attraction and 
retention of businesses, and crime reduction; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy’s Parks and Recreation areas are fundamental to the environmental well-being of our 
community; and  
 
WHEREAS, Parks and Natural Recreation areas improve water quality, protect groundwater, prevent 
flooding, improve the quality of the air we breathe, provide vegetative buffers to development, and 
produce habitat for wildlife; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy’s Parks and Natural Recreation areas ensure the ecological beauty of our 
community and provide a place for children and adults to connect with nature and recreate outdoors; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
proclaim July 2013 as Parks and Recreation Month; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we invite all Troy residents to recognize and celebrate the benefits 
derived from our excellent Parks and Recreation Resources and encourage everyone to take part in 
the wide variety of programs, classes and activities offered at our Troy Community Center and 
community parks. 
 
Presented this 8th day of July 2013. 
 
         

bittnera
Text Box
C-02a



 

b) City Council Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting 
for action: 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 

Ehlert Max K. 11/15/2013 1/31/2015  
Godlewski W. Stan 12/14/2012 1/31/2014 Requests Reappointment 
Hall Patrick 12/12/2014 1/31/2016  
Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 1/31/2016  
Oberski Jeff    
Huber R. Mitch 3/1/2015 7/31/2014 Student Rep. 
Payne Timothy P. 2/8/2014 1/31/2015  
Scherlinck Eun Joo Andrea 6/11/2014 7/31/2013 Student Rep. 
Ukrainec Bohdan 12/23/2012 1/31/2014  
Vacancy   1/31/2015 David Ogg resigned 4/25/2013 

 

 
Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015  
 Term currently held by: Vacancy – David Ogg Resigned 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Binkowski Matthew 5/7/2015  

 

 
 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School Board Member: 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

I-2b 



 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 3 

Anderson Carol  12/31/2099   
Fejes Kathleen M 9/30/2012 9/30/2013   
Gazetti Tod 9/14/2012 9/30/2013  No Reappointment 

Hauff Gary 2/6/2014 7/31/2013 Troy School 
Dist. Rep.   

Huber Laurie G 2/8/2014 9/30/2015   

Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 1/20/2014 9/30/2015 ZBA (Alt.) exp 
1/31/2015  

Kovacs Meaghan 3/25/2010 9/30/2014   
Stewart Jeffrey L 9/30/2011 9/30/2013   
Yelamanchi Aditya 6/5/2014 7/31/2013 Student Rep. No Reappointment 
Zikakis Janice 11/11/2013 9/30/2014   

 

 
Nominations to the Parks and Recreation Board: 
 
Term Expires:  07/31/2014  
 Term currently held by: Gary Hauff 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Baker Julia (Judy) 5/7/2015  
Boudon Frank 5/15/2015  
Brandstetter Tim 5/1/2015  
Gauri Kul B 11/22/2013  
Howrylak Frank 2/1/2014  

Knight P. Terry 1/4/2014 DDA exp 9/30/2015;  
Personnel Bd exp 4/30/2015 

Rosenberg Michael 4/19/2015  
Steele John 9/27/2013  

Toth Steve 10/3/2013 Animal Control Appeal Bd. exp 
9/30/2014 

Viola Vincent J 11/16/2013  
 

 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 



 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Binkowski Sarah 1/16/2015 1/31/2016   
Halsey Lawrence Ted 11/29/2013 1/31/2015   

Huotari William   Ex-Officio 
Member  

Kilmer Richard A. 12/23/2012 1/31/2014   

Mayer Gary   Ex-Officio 
Member  

Nelson William   Ex-Officio 
Member  

Petrulis Al 6/11/2014 1/31/2014  ACAB exp 9/30/2015 
Popovic Stevan 5/29/2014 1/31/2016   
Vacancy   1/31/2015  David Ogg resigned 
Ziegenfelder Peter F. 12/14/2012 1/31/2014   

 

 
Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015  
 Term currently held by: Vacancy - David Ogg Resigned 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Apahidean Olimpiu (Ollie) 3/14/2014  
Brandstetter Tim 5/1/2015  
Chambers Barbara A. 4/30/2014 Historic Dist exp 3/1/2014;  

Hist Dist Study-Ad Hoc 
McGee Timothy S. 8/13/2014  

 

 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Bloomingdale Bruce 1/20/2014 4/30/2015  Hist Dist Study: Ad Hoc 
Clark Glenn 5/31/2014 4/30/2015   
Courtney Kenneth 2/25/2015 4/30/2016   



 

Eisenbacher David 11/14/2013 4/30/2016   
Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 3/5/2015 1/31/2015 Alternate P&R Bd exp 9/30/2015 
Kneale A. Allen 3/9/2013 4/30/2014  ZBA exp 4/30/14 
Krent Thomas G. 12/13/2014 12/31/2013 (PC Rep)  
Lambert Dave 1/8/2015 4/30/2014  Requests 

Reappointment 
Vacancy   1/31/2015 Alternate  

 

 
Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015  (Alternate) 

 
Term currently held by: Vacancy – David Eisenbacher 

Appointed to Full Member Term  
 
Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire Notes 2 

Binkowski Matthew 5/7/2015  
Brandstetter Tim 5/1/2015  
Chambers Barbara A. 4/30/2014 Historic Dist exp 3/1/2014;  

Hist Dist Study-Ad Hoc 
Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 Liquor Advisory Comm. exp. 1/31/2013 
Kempen Edward 2/1/2014 Planning Comm exp 12/31/2013 
Krent Thomas G. 12/13/2014 Planning Commission exp. 12/31/2013 
Manek Ashish 5/23/2015  
Ragan John 1/26/2014  

 

 
Yes: 
No: 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:       July 8, 2013 
 
To:          Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
   
From:      Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development   

Sehrish Salah-Ud-Din, Assistant to the City Manager/Coordinator for 
Continuous Improvement      

     Brent Savidant, Planning Director  
     William J Huotari, Deputy City Engineer      
     Stephanie Dilworth, Intern  

 
Subject: SEMCOG Sustainable Community Recognition Program (Introduced by: 
Stephanie Dilworth)              
 
Background: 
 
Part of my internship project is to assist the city in looking at the best practices that 
protect the environment and provide for a high quality of life. In response to this effort, I 
researched the SEMCOG, Sustainable Community Recognition Program.  
 
On Tuesday, June 4th I contacted Stephanie Taylor, Planner, Data Collection and 
Analysis for SEMCOG to inform her that the City of Troy was already incorporating or 
had completed many of the eligible activities of the program and was considering 
applying for the Sustainable Community Recognition Program.  
 
On Tuesday, June 11th a meeting was held with Sehrish Salah-Ud-Din, Mark Miller, 
Brent Savidant, and William J Huotari and I to discuss the details of the completed 
SEMCOG activities. Details were outlined and noted. A consensus was achieved to 
apply for this award.  
 
History:  
 
SEMCOG (Southeast Michigan Council of Governments) prioritizes the creation of 
initiatives to help local governments achieve and maintain sustainability which they 
define as economic prosperity while protecting the environment and providing a high 
quality of life for residents.  
 
Through its Sustainable Community Recognition Program, SEMCOG recognizes 
member communities that have taken initiative to incorporate sustainable activities into 
their practices. For the City of Troy, sustainability means working with the community for 
continuous efficiency and durability while encouraging best practices. SEMCOG reviews 
the eligible activities and awards recognition and endorsement to the communities who 
meet the standards for maintaining sustainability. 

bittnera
Text Box
I-04



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
SEMCOG has developed a Sustainable Community Recognition Program to help local 
governments achieve and maintain sustainability. Any SEMCOG member community is 
eligible to participate. This includes counties, cities, villages and townships. There is no 
fee to participate in the program. Some of the eligible activities include: implementation 
of green infrastructure on public property, transportation safety audit, walkable/bike-able 
audit, asset management plan, distribution of public outreach information, etc. We have 
already completed 12 out of the 16 eligible activities. Please see the attached activity 
sheet for further information. 
 
Recognition and input from SEMCOG will enable the City to continue our leadership in 
the region by ongoing forward-thinking changes in our community and to further 
integrate SEMCOG-supported best practices into our operations. Additionally, the 
recognition will help inform residents and business owners about the initiatives being 
implemented throughout the community. 
 
Upon City Council's authorization to participate, SEMCOG staff will meet with City staff 
to discuss the eligible activities that have been completed along with the other activities 
that Troy may want to pursue. Following the review from SEMCOG of the completed 
activities, SEMCOG will then present a certificate of recognition at a future City Council 
meeting. Additionally, a press release will be sent to local media outlets, and the City of 
Troy will be recognized on the SEMCOG web site.  
 
We are interested in pursuing this award to share our best practices with our residents, 
business owners, and others in the ways that we go about completing our operations 
while being mindful of the environment and providing a high quality of life for those who 
live, work, and play in the city.  
 
Eligible Activities:  
 
Implement Green Infrastructure on public property: 
 
The “Restoring Fish Passage in the Red Run Headwaters” project will involve removing 
the Aquatic Center Pond Dam above the Town/Civic Center Drive culverts, establishing 
natural rock grade control upstream of the dam; and allowing 1,000 feet of stream to 
develop as a self-forming channel upstream of the grade control.  
 
The project will restore a total of 1,400 feet of stream channel. A total of 1.7 miles of 
headwater tributaries in low density residential areas will be connected to 1.5 miles of 
the lower Lane Drain which is indirectly connected to Lake St. Clair. Approximately 0.75 
acres of riparian wet meadow will be created. Over 3 acres of riparian native buffer re-
vegetation/ no mow areas will be established. Construction for the project will extend 
from July 2013 through November 2013 and a final report of the project will be 
submitted by October 31, 2014.  



 

 

3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Conduct a transportation Safety Audit of a road intersection or area in your 
community, and implement recommendations:  
 
An Operational Stage Road Safety Audit (RSA) on the Rochester Road (M-150) corridor 
in Oakland County was completed by Opus International Consultants, Inc. under the 
direction of MDOT in partnership with the Road Commission of Oakland County 
(RCOC) and the cities of Rochester Hills and Troy. The objectives to this study were to 
conduct a formal safety performance examination of the study corridor with an 
independent, multi-disciplinary team. RSA’s are a proactive approach to addressing 
safety and all road users and involve identifying both safety issues and developing 
mitigation measures. The objectives of this report are to observe traffic operations and 
safety at intersections, identify physical and operational problems that may affect traffic 
safety, and to develop and evaluate potential countermeasures to reduce the frequency 
and severity of collisions.  
 
Conduct a Walkable/Bikeable Audit of an area in your community, and implement 
recommendations: 
 
The Trails and Pathways Master Plan is a comprehensive plan to establish a network of 
recreational, multi-use trails that connect people to important destinations in a safer, 
more green and accessible way, appropriate for all users. The plan guides planning, 
development, management and operations of existing and future bicycle and pedestrian 
transportation that fits into the fabric of the City of Troy and also makes regional 
connections. This is designed for the City of Troy Parks Department in Partnership with: 
Trails and Pathway Committee, City of Troy Planning Department, City of Troy Traffic 
Engineering, and North Woodward Community Foundation.  
 
The community’s vision is a pathway network plan that would identify development 
strategies that connect residential neighborhoods to parks, schools, shopping areas, 
dining, recreation, and work centers. This network would then link to non-motorized 
systems in adjacent communities so users could easily walk or bike to nearby regional 
non-motorized corridors.  
 
Develop a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Initiative (SWPPI) Plan:  
 
This document fulfills the City of Troy’s NPDES Phase II storm water permit requirement 
for a SWPPI. This SWPPI has been designed and will be implemented to reduce, to the 
maximum extent practicable, the discharge of storm water pollutants to the surface 
waters in our community. This document updates and integrates our Illicit Discharge 
Elimination Plan (IDEP) and our Public Education Plan (PEP) into our community’s 
SWPPI and includes activities to be implemented consistent with the Watershed 
Management Plans developed for the Rouge River and Clinton River Watersheds. This 
SWPPI combines with and relies on the implementation of watershed management 



 

 

4 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

activities to protect and restore the surface waters in the Rouge River and Clinton River 
Watersheds.  
 
 Develop a community Transit Coordination Plan:  
 
The Trails and Pathways Master Plan is a comprehensive plan to establish a network of 
recreational, multi-use trails that connect people to important destinations in a safer, 
more green and accessible way, appropriate for all users. The plan guides planning, 
development, management and operations of existing and future bicycle and pedestrian 
transportation that fits into the fabric of the City of Troy and also makes regional 
connections. This is designed for the City of Troy Parks Department in Partnership with: 
Trails and Pathway Committee, City of Troy Planning Department, City of Troy Traffic 
Engineering, and North Woodward Community Foundation.  
 
The community’s vision is a pathway network plan that would identify development 
strategies that connect residential neighborhoods to parks, schools, shopping areas, 
dining, recreation, and work centers. This network would then link to non-motorized 
systems in adjacent communities so users could easily walk or bike to nearby regional 
non-motorized corridors.  
 
Use SEMCOG data to develop your community Master Plan, Strategic Plan, or 
Capital Improvement Plan:  
 
The City of Troy Master Plan was adopted in 2008 and utilizes SEMCOG data. The 
Master Plan is the official guide for land use and development in the City of Troy. We 
are beginning the process of updating the document and will use SEMCOG data in the 
amended document, as necessary.  The Master Plan is the official policy guide for the 
resolution of community development issues. The Master Plan is a general statement of 
the City’s goals and policies and provides a single, comprehensive view of the 
community’s desire for the future. The Master Plan furthermore serves as an aid in daily 
decision-making. The goals and policies outlined in the Master Plan guide the Planning 
Commission and City Council in their deliberations on zoning, subdivisions, capital 
improvements, and other matters relating to land use and development.  
 
The Master Plan attempts to coordinate public improvements and private development. 
The Master Plan furthermore serves as an educational tool and gives citizens, property 
owners, developers, and adjacent communities a clear indication of the City’s direction 
for the future.  The Master Plan provides the statutory foundation upon which zoning 
decisions are based.  
 
 
Distribute Public Outreach Information (Ours to Protect, Ozone Action, or 
MiRideshare) to residents:  
 



 

 

5 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Public outreach provides interested parties with information they can use to be better 
stewards of the environment. Examples of public outreach are the fliers we distributed 
along with several others, for the Clinton River Watershed Council in 2012. These fliers 
helped promote the “Adopt-A- Stream” activity which gives residents the opportunity to 
participate in: General Bug I.D. Workshops, Adopt-A-Stream basic training, and the 
Adopt-A-Stream Kit Pick Up. Another flier was for the presentation of “The Watershed 
Story” which gives residents the opportunity to learn about the Clinton River Watershed 
and learn about everyday actions that influence the health of our lakes, rivers, and 
streams. Last, the City of Troy distributed fliers for the River Restoration Walk at the 
Avon Nature Area in 2012 for the Clinton River Watershed Council. This walk allows 
citizens to discover the natural history of the Clinton River, where its watershed starts, 
and how citizens actions affect it.   
 
 Incorporate Low Impact Development (LID) components into your planning and 
zoning processes:  
 
The Master Plan identifies and discusses the importance of LID. The Zoning Ordinance 
provides administrative relief for projects that incorporate LID elements in their design.  
This tool is called the Sustainable Development Project (SDP), and has been used by a 
number of applicants including O’Brien Construction at 966 Livernois. The, “Sustainable 
Development Checklist,” was established by Section 12.01 of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance and was adopted by the Troy City Council on September 26, 2011.  
 
The purpose of the Sustainable Development Project (SDP) option is to encourage 
development and redevelopment in the City of Troy to incorporate features designed to 
minimize adverse impacts on the natural and built environment. SDP status will 
empower applicants to seek a modification from certain elements of the Zoning 
Ordinance and receive benefits directly related to the sustainable features proposed for 
their project. 
 
Develop an Access Management Plan for a transportation route in your 
community:  
 
The Rochester Road Access Management Plan reviewed the Rochester Road corridor 
from Royal Oak to the City of Rochester. Segments of Rochester Road, especially 
along portions located north of I-75, experience periodic congestion and a relatively high 
number of crashes. Data and observations indicate that vehicles entering and exiting 
the roadway at cross streets and individual driveways contribute significantly to these 
problems. Managing access along the corridor can reduce crash potential and 
congestion because it considers the number, placement, and design of access points 
(intersecting streets and commercial driveways) in the context of the overall roadway, 
not just on each individual site.  
 



 

 

6 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

The primary purpose of the project is to assess conditions along the corridor and 
recommend changes that will improve safety and efficiency of travel. However, applying 
access management has other secondary benefits, including higher pedestrian comfort 
and safety, improved biking environments, improved economic vibrancy, and increased 
opportunity to “green” the corridor. 
 
Develop an Asset Management Plan for the road infrastructure in your 
community:  
 
The 6 Year CIP (Capital Improvements Plan) provides a long-term improvement plan for 
roads in the City. This plan is used to satisfy our asset management requirements. 
Public Act 499 of 2002 established a ten member State Transportation Asset 
Management Council (TAMC). The law also requires that the TAMC set up a process 
for determining the condition of Michigan’s highways and bridges and develop a 
strategy so that those assets are maintained, preserved and improved in an efficient 
and cost-effective manner.  
 
The TAMC adopted the Pavement Surface and Evaluation Rating (PASER) system as 
its road condition survey reporting tool which the City of Troy is also currently using. 
Once PASER ratings work is complete, analysis of the network is performed using 
Roadsoft pavement Management software. The software uses this data along with 
specific user defined information (such as budgetary limitations and timeframes) to 
generate an optimal mix of maintenance procedures and project future network 
conditions. The Pavement Management system is next augmented by field reviews of 
the recommended areas as pavement conditions in areas can deteriorate faster or 
slower than anticipated based on numerous factors including weather, traffic, pavement 
thickness and previous maintenance. Once this information is analyzed, project areas 
are developed based on geographic locations to complete repairs. This provides 
economies of scale for repairs within a specific section or area of the city.   
  
Use Benchmark Data to compare your costs to others, and implement changes to 
meet those benchmarks:  
 
The City of Troy uses Benchmark Data to compare costs to others within the SEMCOG 
region and around the country while implementing changes to meet those benchmarks. 
Various departments have participated in this effort and still participate including 
Purchasing, Human Resources, etc. 
 
Develop a multi-year budget or budget forecast: 
 
The City Council adopts a three year budget that provides the basis for the annual 
budget adopted annually in May. A three year budget allows the City to plan accordingly 
in the future. 
 



 

 

7 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Purchasing:  
N/A- City of Troy does not have to make any purchases regarding this award.  
 
Financial:  
N/A There is no financial obligation that City of Troy will incur due to this award.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
Approve the authorization for the City of Troy's participation in the SEMCOG 
Sustainable Community Recognition Program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SD/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\7.08.13 – SEMCOG Award 



Background
SEMCOG provides information and assistance to member local governments in Southeast Michigan in the 
areas of transportation, environment, governmental efficiency, and community and economic development. For 
local governments, sustainability is about achieving economic prosperity while protecting the environment and 
providing a high quality of life for residents. Implementing SEMCOG-supported initiatives helps local govern-
ments achieve and maintain sustainability. 

Why should my community participate?
• Get information to back-up and validate your decisions as local officials.
• Be a leader in the region by making forward-thinking changes in your community.
• Integrate SEMCOG-supported practices into your operations, and receive recognition for doing so. 
• Inform constituents about the initiatives being implemented in your community.
• Maximize your SEMCOG membership dues. 
• Improve the long-term sustainability of your community.

What communities are eligible to participate?
Any SEMCOG member community is eligible to participate. This includes counties, cities, villages and town-
ships. There is no fee to participate in the program.

How does the program work?
Once your community has signed up to participate, SEMCOG staff will meet with officials from your commu-
nity to discuss which of the eligible activities (listed below) to pursue. SEMCOG will work with you and your 
staff to complete the eligible activities that you have selected.

Completion of 5-7 of the eligible activities will get your community recognized at the bronze level, completion 
of 8-10 activities at the silver level, and completion of 11+ eligible activities will get your community recog-
nized at the gold level. 

Following completion of the eligible activities by your community, SEMCOG will present a certificate of rec-
ognition at a meeting of your board, council or commission. Additionally, a press release will be sent to local 
media outlets, and your community will be recognized on the SEMCOG Web site. Communities that achieve 
the gold level of recognition will have opportunities to share their experience and expertise with other SEM-
COG member communities.

How does my community sign up to participate?
Step 1. Have your council, board or commission pass a resolution (see a sample at www.semcog.org/members) 
stating your community’s intent to participate. SEMCOG is available to discuss the program at that meeting. 

Step 2. Contact Karen Wieber (313) 324-3345 or Amy Malmer at (313) 324-3308.



Sustainable Community Recognition Program 
What are the eligible activities?

 1. Develop a neighborhood stabilization plan:  Neighborhood stabilization plans are developed to guide the 
redevelopment of abandoned and foreclosed homes.

 2. Implement green infrastructure on public property:  Plan and manage a network of wilderness, parks, 
greenways, and conservation easements in your community in order to support native species,  
maintain ecological balance, sustain air and water resources, and contribute to a high quality of life.

 3. Conduct a transportation safety audit of a road intersection or area in your community, and implement rec-
ommendations: Road safety audits allow communities to identify and address safety problems so  
residents and visitors can drive, walk, and bike safely.

 4. Conduct a walkable/bikeable audit of an area in your community, and implement recommendations: 
Livable communities generally have facilities promoting safe pedestrian and bicycle travel and connecting 
people to jobs, entertainment, stores, schools, and recreation.

 5.  Develop a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Initiative (SWPPI) Plan: A plan to implement and evaluate 
pollution prevention and other water quality practices.

 6.  Develop a community transit coordination plan: Improve the mobility of all people in your community, 
particularly older adults, young people, people with disabilities, low-income workers, and those without 
regular access to a car. 

 7. Use SEMCOG data to develop your community Master Plan, Strategic Plan, or Capital Improvement Plan:  
Long-term planning allows your community to develop short-term solutions in anticipation of future needs.

 8. Distribute public outreach information (Ours to Protect, Ozone Action, or MiRideshare) to residents:  
Actions your residents can take to improve the region’s air and water quality.

 9. Incorporate Low Impact Development (LID) components into your planning and zoning processes: 
The goal of LID is to in manage rainfall at its source, using a variety of design techniques.

 10. Develop an access management plan for a transportation route in your community:  Access management 
reduces potential for crashes and maximizes existing road capacity by limiting the number of access points 
(commercial driveways and median crossovers), carefully placing and spacing access points, and designing 
the road and access points to serve all users (drivers, pedestrians, bicyclists, and transit riders).

11. To improve air quality in the region, adopt a policy that requires certain actions by your local government 
departments on Ozone Action days:  On Ozone Action Days, local governments can take certain actions that 
can help reduce the creation of ozone that day and keep it at levels that meet the national air quality stan-
dard.

 12. Develop an asset management plan for the road infrastructure in your community:  Asset management im-
proves the performance and effectiveness of our roads through continual monitoring of physical inventory 
and condition assessment.

 13. Use benchmark data to compare your costs to others, and implement changes to meet those benchmarks: 
Compare your local government to others within the SEMCOG region and around the country.

 14. Incorporate measures of citizen satisfaction into your budget and service provision decisions:  Measure 
resident priorities and satisfaction levels in order to assess services, improve performance, and build public 
trust.

 15. Develop a multi-year budget or budget forecast: Budgeting or forecasting on a multi-year basis provides 
insight into the future scenarios facing your local government in order to develop long-range solutions.

 16. Achieve a Community Self-Assessment score of 50 or greater:  This survey tool gives local governments  
a better understanding of their effectiveness in providing services at a cost-effective level.



Category #: South East Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) Sustainable 
Community Recognition Program  
 
Resolution #2013-  
Moved by:  
Seconded by: 
 
WHEREAS, the Troy City Council seeks to improve the long term sustainability of our 
community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Troy City Council seeks to achieve economic prosperity while 
protecting the environment and providing a high quality of life for residents; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Troy City Council seeks to inform residents about innovative initiatives 
being implemented in our community; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Troy City Council seeks to maximize SEMCOG membership dues by 
using services available to member local governments; and 
 
WHEREAS, SEMCOG assists local governments in Southeast Michigan by making 
them more efficient and effective, and  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Troy City Council hereby determines it to be 
in the public’s best interest to APPROVE a commitment to participate in the SEMCOG 
Community Recognition Program. A copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that William Huotari is designated as the primary contact 
from our community for this program; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of 
contract documents and all other specified requirements; 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor 
and City Clerk to execute the documents on behalf of the Troy City Council; 
 
 
Adopted this ____ day of ___________________________________  
_____________________________________________  
Clerk 
 
 
Yes:   
No:   
Absent:   
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  June 10, 2013 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Economic Development Director 

Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Carol Anderson, Recreation Director 
  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
    
Subject: Rescind and Re-award Catering Contract for Community Center Events   
 
 

History 
In May of 2011, Encore Catering was awarded the Community Center Catering contract for three 
years with an option to renew for three additional years (Resolution #2011-05-093).  Since that time, 
Encore Catering has not secured the number of reservations or revenues as anticipated by their staff.  
As a result, in March of 2013, Encore Catering contacted the City requesting to be relieved of the 
catering contract that expires in August of 2014.   
 
Kosch’s Hospitality, LLC responded to the original request for proposal (RFP) in February 2011 and 
has agreed to assume the current contract on August 1, 2013.  Kosch is requesting a renewal for five 
(5) additional years through July 2019, so long as the caterer is in good standing.  The inclusion of 
the renewal allows time to properly advertise services, promote the facility and secure long range 
events.  Other changes to the agreement include: exclusive food service rights on Saturdays, ten 
percent return to the City on both food and liquor sales and exclusive use of the kitchen on Saturday.  
 
Purchasing 
On February 24, 2011, requests for proposals (RFP) were received from companies interested in 
providing three-year requirements of catering services for the Troy Community Center with an option 
to renew for three additional years. Sixty-six (66) companies were notified via the Michigan 
Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) website with three (3) proposals received. All three firms 
met the pass/fail criteria; however, Crank’s Services LLC withdrew from the process. 
 
Kosch Hospitality, LLC received the highest score in the original (2011) catering RFP evaluation 
process when considering the proposal documents, menus, experience, alcohol service, financial 
ability to perform and professional competence.  However, Encore Catering scored highest overall 
when the pricing model was added to the final score.  
 
Financial 
Through the length of this agreement, the City will receive a minimum of $12,000 annually with a 
potential for an additional ten percent of gross receipts, if the caterer exceeds $120,000/year. 
 
 
Recommendation 

bittnera
Text Box
I-05



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

City staff recommends: 
 

(A) To rescind with prejudice the existing contract with Encore Catering that expires in August of 
2014; 

 
(B) To re-award and assign the catering contract that expires in August of 2014 to Kosch 

Hospitality, LLC with a renewal for five (5) additional years, so long as the caterer is in good 
standing. The award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly executed 
Agreement and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements; 

 
(C)  To request authorization pursuant to MCL 436.1509 for Kosch to apply for and acquire a 

municipal civic center liquor license from the MLCC valid only for banquet operations at the 
Troy Community Center.   

 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format/ Regular Business - Rescind-ReAward - Catering Contract 06.13.doc 

























bittnera
Text Box
I-06

























CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 1 - 

Council Member Henderson performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
was given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, June 17, 2013, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Ed Pennington 
Doug Tietz 
 

Resolution #2013-06-112 
Moved by Tietz  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Fleming at the Regular City Council Meeting of June 17, 2013, due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: Slater, Campbell, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Presentation by St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church on OPA Fest 2013 

(Introduced by:  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director) 
 
C-2 Presentation by the City of Troy and SAFEbuilt, Inc. for the 2nd Annual Youth 

Achievement Scholarship Award by Cindy Stewart and Steve Burns to Kenneth 
Scudder, Athens High School and Frank Boudon, Troy High School (Introduced 
by:  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director ) 

 
C-3 Service Commendation for Susan Leirstein (Introduced by:  Mayor Slater) 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Public Hearing to Establish a Special Assessment District for Asphalt Paving of 

the Westerly 324’ of Troywood in Section 22 – Standard Resolution #4 
 
The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after 
receiving no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2013-06-113 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Campbell  
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council has caused Special Assessment Roll No. 12.201.1 to be 
prepared for the purpose of defraying the Special Assessment District’s portion of the following 
described public improvement in the City of Troy; and 
 

Bituminous Paving of a portion of Troywood Street 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council and the City Assessor have met after due legal notice and have 
reviewed said Special Assessment Roll and have heard all persons interested in said Special 
Assessment Roll appearing at said hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council is satisfied with said Special Assessment Roll as prepared by 
the City Assessor; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Special Assessment Roll No. 12.201.1 in the amount 
of $60,100.00 is hereby CONFIRMED as prepared by the City Assessor, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to, and become a part of the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Campbell, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz, Slater  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 

James Savage Spoke on Item I-04. 
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 3 - 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Liquor Advisory Committee 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2013-06-114 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated:   
 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 
 
 
Term Expires:  07/31/2014 Robert Mitch Huber (Student) 
 Term currently held by: Student Member 
   
Yes: Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz, Slater, Campbell  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 

Council Nominations – Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee, Zoning 
Board of Appeals 

 
a) Mayoral Nominations:  None 
 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
City Council TOOK NO ACTION on this Item. 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session  
 
Resolution #2013-06-115 
Moved by Henderson  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 4 - 

Seconded by Campbell  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (e) - (Knutson v. City of Troy and Community Financial Credit Union v. City of 
Troy). 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz, Slater, Campbell, Henderson  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-4 Troy Downtown Development Authority Bond Repayment Proposal and Resolution 

Authorizing the Publication of a Notice of Intent to Issue Bonds (Introduced by:  
Brian Kischnick, City Manager) 

 
Resolution #2013-06-116 
Moved by Pennington  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
 At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 

held on June 17, 2013. 

PRESENT:

 _________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:

 _________________________________________________________________ 

 

 The following resolution was moved by _________________________ and seconded 

by _________________________: 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PUBLICATION OF 

A NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE BONDS 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, The Downtown Development Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”) has 

previously issued the following bonds pursuant to Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 

1975, as amended (“Act 197”), secured solely by tax increment revenues received by the DDA 

to finance the implementation of a portion of its Development Plan and Tax Increment 

Financing Plan (collectively, the “Plan”): (i) Downtown Development Authority Development and 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 in the aggregate principal amount of $24,000,000 to finance the 

cost of roadway and streetscape improvements to Big Beaver Road and to refinance a portion 

of the cost of the parking garage adjacent to Somerset North, (ii) Community Center Facility 

Bonds, Series 2002 in the aggregate principal amount of $9,700,000 to finance a portion of the 

cost of constructing the Troy Community Center, and (iii) Community Facility Center Junior Lien 

Bonds, Series 2003 in the aggregate principal amount of $4,025,000 to finance a portion of the 

cost of constructing the Troy Community Center (such bonds are collectively referred to as the 

“DDA Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, Although the schedules prepared as part of each issue of DDA Bonds 

predicted that there would be sufficient tax increment revenues to cover all of the debt service 

on the DDA Bonds, there has been an unanticipated decline in property values in the Plan’s 

Development Area since 2008, and a corresponding decrease in the available tax increment 

revenues to the extent that they are unable to pay the debt service on the DDA Bonds as of 

November 1, 2013; and  

WHEREAS, Without any further amendments to the Plan, because of the decline in the 

property values in the Plan’s Development Area, it is also expected that the DDA will not be 

capturing any tax increment revenues for the next fiscal year (beginning on July 1, 2014) and 

each fiscal year thereafter, until the final maturity of the DDA Bonds on November 1, 2018, and 

therefore the DDA will be unable to pay the debt service due on the DDA Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, The Troy City Manager has submitted, and the DDA has approved, a 

proposal to avoid a default on the DDA Bonds that, if implemented, would involve the following 

actions:  (a) extending the existence of the DDA and the Plan to 2033 to allow for the capture 

of annual tax increment revenues to ultimately pay off the indebtedness represented by the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 6 - 

DDA Bonds; (b) amending the Plan by removing certain specified properties that have 

significantly decreased in value  from the Plan’s Development Area to enable the DDA to 

realize a capture of tax increment revenues from the revised Development Area in amounts 

sufficient to pay the annual debt service on the City Bonds (as hereinafter defined); and (c) the 

City issuing general obligation bonds (the “City Bonds”) to refund the DDA Bonds, which 

although requiring the City to pledge its limited tax full faith and credit, will be secured primarily 

by the tax increment revenues to be derived from the revised Development Area for the 

extended period of time; and 

WHEREAS, The City is authorized under Act 197 to issue the City Bonds to pay all or 

part of the cost of implementing the Plan and in connection therewith, refunding the DDA 

Bonds, as part of the proposed overall plan to avoid a default on the DDA Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, In order for the City to implement the proposed plan and to issue the City 

Bonds, it is necessary that the City publish a notice of intent to issue bonds pursuant to Section 

5(g) of Act 279 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1909 (MCL 117.5), as amended (“Act 279”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. That a notice of intent to issue bonds for the City Bonds shall be PUBLISHED in 

accordance with Section 5(g) of Act 279 (MCL 117.5). 

2. That the City Clerk is AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to publish the notice of 

intent to issue bonds in the Oakland Press, a newspaper of general circulation in 

the City, in the form ATTACHED hereto as Exhibit A. 

3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 

provisions of this resolution be and the same ARE RESCINDED. 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

Yes: _________________________________________________________________ 

No: _________________________________________________________________ 

Absent: _________________________________________________________________ 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 7 - 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 

 I, hereby, certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly 

adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 

held on June 17, 2013, the original of which resolution is on file in my office.  I further certify 

that notice of said meeting was given in accordance with the provisions of the Open Meetings 

Act, Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended (MCL 15.261 et. seq.). 
 
 
       ___________________________________  

 M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
 Troy City Clerk 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CITY OF TROY 
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE BONDS TO ELECTORS AND TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY 
OF TROY, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, SECURED BY THE LIMITED TAX FULL FAITH 
AND CREDIT OF THE CITY AND THE RIGHT TO REFERENDUM THEREON 
 
 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan (the “City”) 
intends to issue limited tax general obligation bonds, in one or more series, in the maximum 
amount of not to exceed $15,500,000. 
 
 The bonds will be issued for the purpose of financing a portion of the cost of the 
development program of the Tax Increment Financing Plan of the Downtown Development 
Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”) and in connection therewith, refunding (i) the DDA’s 
outstanding Downtown Development Authority Development and Refunding Bonds, Series 
2001 issued by the DDA to finance the cost of roadway and streetscape improvements to Big 
Beaver Road and to refinance a portion of the cost of the parking garage adjacent to Somerset 
North, (ii) the DDA’s outstanding Community Center Facility Bonds, Series 2002 issued by the 
DDA to finance a portion of the cost of constructing the Troy Community Center, and (iii) the 
DDA’s outstanding Community Facility Center Junior Lien Bonds, Series 2003 issued by the 
DDA to finance a portion of the cost of constructing the Troy Community Center. 
 
 The bonds of each series will be payable in annual principal installments not to exceed 
twenty (20) in number and will bear interest at rates to be determined at a competitive or 
negotiated sale but in no event to exceed such rates as may be permitted by law.  The bonds 
will be issued pursuant to Act 197 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975, as amended (“Act 
197”).  The bonds will not be issued by the City unless and until the City Council extends the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 8 - 

existence of the DDA to December 31, 2033 and approves amendments to the DDA’s 
Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan (collectively, the “Plan”) in accordance 
with Act 197, which extends the existence of the Plan to December, 2033 and revises the 
Development Area for the Plan by removing therefrom certain specified properties, with the 
result that the DDA is projected to capture sufficient tax increment revenues to pay the principal 
of and interest on the bonds. 
 
SOURCE OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY 
 
 The principal of and interest on the bonds will be secured first from the tax increment 
revenues received by the DDA pursuant to the Plan, as amended as described above, and will 
be secured secondarily by the limited tax full faith and credit pledge of the City.  The City will be 
obligated, as a first budget obligation, to advance moneys from its general funds or to levy ad 
valorem taxes on all taxable property within its corporate boundaries to pay the principal of and 
interest on such bonds in the event and to the extent that such tax increment revenues of the 
DDA are not sufficient to make such payments.  Taxes levied by the City to pay such principal 
and interest are subject to applicable constitutional, statutory and charter tax rate limitations. 
 
RIGHT OF REFERENDUM 
 
 This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Troy, to and for the benefit 
of the electors of the City in order to inform them of their right to petition for a referendum on 
the question of the issuance of the aforesaid bonds.  The bonds will be issued, without 
submitting such a question to a vote of the electors, unless within 45 days from the date of 
publication of this notice a petition, signed by not less than 10% or 15,000 of the registered 
electors residing within the City, whichever is less, shall have been filed with the undersigned 
City Clerk requesting a referendum upon the question of the issuance of said bonds.  In the 
event that such a petition is filed, the bonds will not be issued until approved by the vote of the 
majority of the electors of the City qualified to vote and voting thereon at a general or special 
election. 
 
 This notice is published pursuant to the requirements of Section 5(g) of Act 279 of the 
Public Acts of Michigan of 1909 (MCL 117.5), as amended. 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
Troy City Clerk 

 
Yes: Pennington, Slater, Campbell, Henderson, McGinnis  
No: Tietz  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-5 Troy Nature Society Agreement (Introduced by:  Brian Goul, Aquatics/Fitness 

Coordinator) 
 
Resolution #2013-06-117 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 9 - 

Moved by Campbell  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the agreement with the Troy Nature 
Society for a four year period effective July 1, 2013. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
execute the agreement, and a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Slater, Campbell, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington 
No: Tietz  
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-6 Proposed Ordinance Incorporating Recent Changes to State Fireworks Statute 

(Introduced by:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney)  
 
Resolution #2013-06-118 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That the amendments to Chapter 93 of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances, 
Sections 105.6.14.1, 3301.1.3, 3308.1, and Chapter 47, and amendments and a renumbering 
of Chapter 98, Section 98.05.16, and the addition of a new Section 98.15.01, 98.15.02, and 
98.15.13 are hereby ADOPTED.  A copy of these amendments shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Slater, Campbell, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2013-06-119 
Moved by Campbell  
Seconded by Pennington  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
printed. 
 
Yes: Campbell, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz, Slater  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 10 - 

 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) Joint Special City Council and Troy School Board Meeting Minutes-Draft – May 28, 2013  
b) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – June 3, 2013 
 
J-3 No Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  MITN Purchasing Cooperative – City of 

Rochester Hills – Fire House Testing 
 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a three (3) year contract for fire hose 
testing services during the 2013-2014 year from the lowest acceptable bidder; Waterway 
Michigan, LLC, of Caledonia, MI, through a MITN Cooperative Award hosted by the City of 
Rochester Hills at unit price as detailed on the bid tabulation for SFQ-RH 13-017 for the 
unloading, testing and reloading of approximately 50,780 feet of fire hose to expire December 
30, 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Sidewalk Replacement 

and Installation Program 
 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby awards a three (3) year contract to complete the 
Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program for fiscal year 2013-16 with an option to renew 
for one (1) additional year to the low total bidder; Rotondo Construction Company of 
Farmington Hills, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened June 7, 2013, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, the cost of which shall 
NOT EXCEED annual budgetary limitations, with the contract expiring June 30, 2016. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including Insurance Certificates, 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 11 - 

Performance, Labor and Material Bonds, Maintenance Bonds and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Traffic Control Signs and Posts 
 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS one-year contracts to provide Traffic 
Control Signs and Posts on a proposal by proposal basis to the four (4) lowest total bidders 
meeting specifications as detailed below at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation, opened 
May 24, 2013, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with 
the contract expiring June 1, 2014. 
 

Bidder Proposal 
Rathco Safety Supply A, E, F, I, G 
Custom Products Corp. C, G 
MD Solutions H 
Vulcan Signs B, D, G 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS all bids under 
Proposal B, item #5, 24 x 24 Directional Arrow Sign because it is a non-inventory standard sign 
and will not be purchased. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal League 2013 
Annual Conference 

 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council Members are AUTHORIZED to attend the Michigan 
Municipal League 2013 Annual Conference from September 17-20, 2013 in Detroit, Michigan, 
in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 12-8 – 

Section 4 Water Main Replacement – North Side 
 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 12-8, Section 4 Water 
Main Replacement – North Side, to Superior Excavating, Inc., P.O. Box 214290, Auburn Hills, 
MI 48321-4290 for their low total bid amount of $2,632,685.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is authorized in an amount 
not to exceed 15% of the total project cost. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 12 - 

J-5 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Galleria 
of Troy – Project No. 13.904.3 

 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Galleria of Troy, LLC, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, paving, sidewalks, soil erosion and 
landscaping, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-6 Addendum No. 1 to Contract 12-03 – Fieldstone Sanitary Repair 
 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Addendum No. 1 to Contract No.12-03, Fieldstone Sanitary Repair be 
AWARDED to Superior Excavating, P.O. Box 4290, Auburn Hills, MI  48321 at an estimated 
total cost of $176,514.50 and, if additional work is required, such additional work is 
AUTHORIZED in an amount NOT TO EXCEED 20% of the total project cost including 
Addendum No. 1. 
 
J-7 Application Regarding New SDM Liquor License for Super City Smoker, Inc. 
 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-7 
 
WHEREAS, Super City Smoker, Inc. requests a New SDM License to be located at 2981 E. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48083, Oakland County  {MLCC Req. #676052}; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department conducted an investigation into this application, and 
did not discover any reasons for disqualification of the two applicants; and 
 
WHEREAS, Based on past experience, the Troy City Administration is concerned about the 
increased probability of liquor license violations for those businesses that primarily sell tobacco 
products to patrons, including those between the ages of 18 to 20 years old who are 
considered minors under the liquor laws; and  
 
WHEREAS, Based on this increased probability of illegal sales of alcohol to minors in these 
establishments, the Troy City Council finds that tobacconists are not favorable locations to sell 
alcoholic products, and reaffirms commitment to the prevention of access to and consumption 
of alcohol by persons under the age of 21 as an established community norm which is 
consistent with the community’s established priorities and dedication to public safety.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby RECOMMENDS 
DENIAL of the application from Super City Smoker, Inc. for a New SDM License to be located 
at 2981 E. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48083, Oakland County {MLCC Req. #676052}.   
 
J-8 Sale of Equipment – Surplus Police Vehicle 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 13 - 

Resolution #2013-06-119-J-8 
 
WHEREAS, Macomb Community College has expressed an interest in purchasing one (1) out 
of service 2009 Ford Crown Victoria with 90,000 miles for use on their driving course to provide 
Emergency Vehicle Operations (EVO) training for Macomb Police Academy cadets and in-
service police officers; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department utilizes the Macomb Police Academy for basic police 
academy training and sends in-service officers to their Basic EVO refresher course; and 
 
WHEREAS, To validate the fair market value of this surplus vehicle, prior auctions were 
reviewed and it was determined the fair market value to be $6,200.00; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 
auction procedures and AUTHORIZES the City of Troy to sell the 2009 surplus Ford Crown 
Victoria police vehicle for the fair market value of $6,200.00 with the appropriate transfer of 
title. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City staff will ENSURE the appropriate transfer of the 
vehicle title to Macomb Community College / Public Service Institute. 
 
J-9 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – White 

Chapel Office Renovation – Project No. 12.913.3 
 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and White Chapel Memorial Park Cemetery, is hereby 
APPROVED for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, paving, 
soil erosion and landscaping, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-10 Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal for Fiscal Year 2013-14 
 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-10 
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Municipal League has provided Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
for the City of Troy and the premium charged has been equitable based on the City’s 
experience; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable to continue the program through the Michigan Municipal League due 
to the positive experience of participating in the MML program;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the net estimated premium cost of $255,911.00 is hereby APPROVED for Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance through the MML for the 2013-2014 fiscal year.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 14 - 

J-11 Application Regarding Class C Liquor License for Garden of Eden/T&M United, 
Inc. 

 
Resolution #2013-06-119-J-11 
 
WHEREAS, T & M United, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of Class C license with Sunday 
Sales Permit, Outdoor Service Permit, Dance Permit, Food Permit, and 2 Additional Bars from 
Carroll Investments, Inc. to 1477 John R. Road, Troy, MI  48083, Oakland County  {MLCC 
Request #676036}; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department conducted an investigation into this application and 
discovered that the applicant was arrested on a warrant for gambling on 4/3/02, and the 
applicant Pled Guilty to Misdemeanor Disorderly Conduct; to wit Gambling, on 8/19/02; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Ordinance Chapter 101, governing the City’s procedures for liquor 
license applications requires consideration of an applicant’s criminal convictions for gambling 
and other offenses as part of the criteria for the City’s action on a liquor license request; and 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant answered “No” to the question “Have you ever been arrested 
ANYWHERE?” on the liquor license questionnaire he completed for the Troy Police 
Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant answered “No” to the question “Have you ever been convicted of a 
crime?” on the liquor license questionnaire he completed for the Troy Police Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, Due to the applicant’s prior involvement in gambling, and the fact that he was not 
truthful on his application; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby RECOMMENDS 
DENIAL of the application from T & M United, Inc. to transfer ownership of Class C license with 
Sunday Sales Permit, Outdoor Service Permit, Dance Permit, Food Permit, and 2 Additional 
Bars from Carroll Investments, Inc. to 1477 John R. Road, Troy, MI  48083, Oakland County  
{MLCC Request #676036}. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Chuck Rizzo Spoke on the SOCRRA bidding process. 
Nicholas Cherasaro Spoke on the DDA bond proposal, the transit center, and the budget 

study meetings. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 15 - 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
N-1  Council Comments Advanced 
 
Council Member Tietz requested an update pertaining to the litigation with the transit facility.  
Lori Bluhm gave a brief update. 
 
Council Member Tietz requested Management look into the SOCRRA bidding process.   
 
Council Member Pennington announced the upcoming Troy Traffic Jam in August.  This event 
offers free admission, classic cars, great food, music, and all proceeds go to the Troy Historical 
Society. 
 
Mayor Slater requested that the DTE Opt Out Program published to the City website. 
 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – May 1, 2013 
b) Planning Commission Special/Study-Draft – May 28, 2013 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 
Noted and Filed 

 
O-3 Letters of Appreciation:  
a) To Troy Police Department From Martin E. Bourdeau Regarding Police Service 
b) To Troy Police Department From Lennie Wilson 
c) To Troy Community Coalition From Kathleen M. Roy 
d) To Staff From Melinda Jones, Executive Director – ReLeaf Michigan Regarding 

Assistance in the Planting at Firefighters Park 
Noted and Filed 

 
O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 

Noted and Filed 
 
O-5 DTE Opt-Out Program 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA-Draft June 17, 2013 
 

- 16 - 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 
P-1  No Study Items  
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 8:59 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 9:10 PM. 
 

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1  Closed Session 
 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:32 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  June 24, 2013 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 

Larysa Figol, Sr. Right of Way Representative   
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate –  

3545 Rochester Road and Colebrook 
 
History   
 
 On April 8, 2013, City Council authorized the Engineering Department, in cooperation with the Purchasing 

Department, to advertise and bid the sale of surplus property identified as Parcel #30, Sidwell #20-22-277-
027 (CC Resolution #2013-04-075-J-12).  An appraisal prepared by Terzo & Bologna, Inc. established a 
market value of $127,000. The minimum bid amount for the property was set at $127,000.  

 The property located at 3545 Rochester Road at Colebrook was acquired as part of the 2010 Rochester 
Road Improvement project. It was previously used as a commercial site zoned CB, Community Business 
District. The new property footprint greatly reduced the number of parking spaces limiting the function and 
use of the property. 

 In 2012, the owner of 2 vacant parcels to the west of the City’s parcel, Mr. Petrit Skenderaj appeared 
before the Planning Commission for approval of a site plan to build an office building and to ultimately 
rezone his properties from R1-C (Residential) to CB (Community Business). His request before the 
Planning Commission was denied. The Commission advised that if his parcels were combined with the 
City’s property to the east, then his application for redevelopment would have more merit. 

 Mr. Skenderaj submitted a formal request to the Engineering Department to purchase the property located 
at 3545 Rochester Road, initiating the approval from City Council to sell the City owned property.  

 The bid proposal package was posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) website 
and notice of the property sale was published in the Troy-Somerset Gazette. Additionally, a sign was 
erected on the property advertising the sale and all parties who made previous personal inquiries to the 
Engineering department staff were contacted with sale details. 

 
Purchasing 
 
On June 21, 2013, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for the sale of property 
at 3545 Rochester Road and Colebrook.  Ninety (90) vendors were notified of the bid opportunity on the 
Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info.  The bid was also sent to the Troy 
Chamber of Commerce.  Three (3) bid responses were received.  Below is a detailed vendor summary: 
         

 
Companies notified via MITN 90 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 2 
Troy Companies notified - Active email Notification 2 
Troy Companies notified - Active non-paying 0 
Companies that viewed the bid  34 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 2 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the 
procurement process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more 
transparent for vendors to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual 
dues receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant 
access to Bids, RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and 
check the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not 
renew their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be 
notified of solicitations or access any bid information. 

 

http://www.mitn.info/�
bittnera
Text Box
J-04a



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Purchasing - continued 
 
Also note that the City reserves the right to award the bid to the highest responsible purchaser meeting 
specifications, or in whatever manner is deemed to be in the City’s best interest; to reject the highest bid that 
has major deviations from the specifications, to accept a lower bid that has only minor deviations. 
 
 
Financial 
 
 The highest bid received was from Petrit Skenderaj for $181,000. Coincidentally, Mr. Skenderaj is the 

owner of the abutting 2 vacant parcels to the west. The next two bids were in the amounts of $151,000 and 
$143,000. There were no exceptions included in the purchase of the property in any of the three bids. 

 The Rochester Road Improvement project was funded primarily with federal funds and thus any monies 
received from the sale of the property must be used in accordance with federal guidelines.  

 All net proceeds from this sale will be set aside to fund a federally funded transportation project in the City 
of Troy. 

 All necessary funds for title work and recording fees will be taken from the proceeds of this sale. 
 Sale of this City-owned surplus property will return the parcel to the tax roll and bring additional revenues, 

as well as encourage investment and business expansion. 
 
Options 
 
 City Council has the option to award this sale to any of the three bidders. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends awarding the sale of the property to the highest bidder, Petrit Skenderaj for the 
bid amount of $181,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\Rochester Surplus Request to Sell 6-24-13.docx 













 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  July 2, 2013 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
Carol Anderson, Director of Recreation 
Elaine S. Bo, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Subject: Waiver of Bid for Purchase of Grounds Maintenance Equipment 
 
 

History 
The average age of the current grounds maintenance equipment at Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf 
courses is ten years.  In particular the Jac LF 100 is eighteen years old.  The City is able to utilize the State of 
Michigan MiDeal Contract and the Billy Casper Golf Contracted pricing in order to purchase replacement 
grounds maintenance equipment for the golf courses. 
 
Purchasing 

 Upon analysis of the MiDeal State of Michigan and Billy Casper Golf Contracted pricing this purchase 
will be a split purchase based on contracted pricing as detailed and summarized in the attached 
tabulation. 
 

 The pricing for two (2) TORO Groundmasters 4500 based on the MiDeal State of Michigan Contract 
#071B0200329 is lower than the Billy Casper Golf Contracted pricing. 

 
 Four TORO Greensmaster 3300 based on Billy Casper Golf Contracted pricing is lower than the State 

Contract pricing. 
 

 Seven (7) pieces of old equipment will be traded in at the value of $10,500 to reduce the total purchase 
price to $209,544.58.  
 

 Splitting the purchase and utilizing both above mentioned contracts will save the City an additional 
$4,313.36. 

 
Financial 
Funds for this equipment are available in the Sylvan Glen Capital General Equipment fund in the 2013-2014 
fiscal year. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends that the bid process be waived and a contract be awarded to Spartan 
Distributors of Auburn Hills, Michigan utilizing the MiDeal and Billy Casper Contract for the purchase of six (6) 
pieces of TORO equipment for an estimated total cost of $209,544.58. 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\ Regular Business - Waiver – Purchase of Grounds Equipment.docx 

bittnera
Text Box
J-05



CITY OF TROY Bid Waiver
Opening Date -- N/A BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 7/2/2013 Grounds Maintenance Equipment for the Golf Course(s)

Billy Casper MiDeal Contract
Contracted Pricing State Contract

 #071B0200329
Grounds Maintenance Equipment -
for the Golf Course(s)

2 TORO Groundsmaster 4500-D (#30857)
10 Leaf Mulching Kit (1 per deck) #30836
2 Extension 2 Post ROPS #119-0020
Price per Unit $57,554.41 $55,397.73

Total Price $115,108.82 $110,795.46

4 TORO Greensmaster 3300 TriFlex Hydraulic  (#04510)
12 11 Blade Cutting Unit #04614
4 Narrow Wiehle Roller .200" Spacing Set of 3 #04626
4 Light Kit #04717
Price per Unit $27,312.28 $29,312.63

Total Price $109,249.12 $117,250.52

Total Equipment Price by Contract: $224,357.94 $228,045.98

Total Purchase low price as per contract(s): $220,044.58
Less Trade-in(s): -$10,500.00
Recommended Grand Total Purchase: $209,544.58

Additional Savings by utilizing both contracts. $4,313.36

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST CONTRACTED PRICING.
BID WAIVER:  Grounds Maintenance Equipment for the Golf Course(s) 

MaryBeth Murz
Purchasing Manager

G:/Bid Waiver Grounds Eqpt Golf Courses



 

 

SF/sf\G:\Projects\Projects - 2003\03.907.3 - Pine Creek Ridge Site Condo's\Private Agreement Agenda Item Document_NEW_6-5-13.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  June 24, 2013 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements  
 Pine Creek Ridge Site Condminimums - Project No. 03.907.3 
 
 
History 
 
The Pine Creek Ridge Site Condminimums, proposed by Maurizio Gennari, is located along the north 
side of Pine Creek and east of Livernois in the southwest 1/4 of Section 3.   
 
Troy Planning Commission recommended preliminary site plan approval on March 11, 2003.  
City Council granted preliminary site plan approval on April 28, 2003 
 
Site grading and utility plans for this development were reviewed and recently approved by the  
Engineering Department.  The plans include municipal improvements; sanitary sewer, storm sewer 
and soil erosion, which will be constructed by Maurizio Gennari on behalf of the City of Troy.  The 
required fees and refundable escrow deposits in the form of Check, that will assure completion of the 
municipal improvements, have been provided by Maurizio Gennari (see attached Private Agreement).  
 
Financial 
 
See attached summary of required deposits and fees for this Private Agreement. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approval of the Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) is 
recommended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-06













 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM 

 
Date:    June 26, 2013 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  William J. Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
 
Subject: Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – June 19, 2013 
 
 
At the Traffic Committee meeting of June 19, 2013, the following recommendation was made for City 
Council approval: 
 
4.  Request for Traffic Control – English at Windmill 

 
RESOLVED, that the intersection control be modified from “no traffic control” to a Stop sign on the 
Windmill Drive northbound approach to English Drive.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2013\6_June 19\To CC re June 19 2013 TC Minutes.docx 

bittnera
Text Box
J-07



Traffic Committee Minutes – June 19, 2013  DRAFT 

Page 1 of 2 
 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, June 19, 2013 in 
the Lower Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall.  Pete Ziegenfelder called the 
meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
PRESENT:  Sarah Binkowski 
    Ted Halsey 
    Richard Kilmer 
    David Ogg 
    Al Petrulis 
    Pete Ziegenfelder 
 
ABSENT:  None     
 
Also present: Cathy Martin, 2765 English  
    Amy Lindsay, Oakland University 
    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
     
2. Minutes – April 17, 2013 
 
RESOLUTION # 2013-06-08 
  
Moved by Halsey  
Seconded by Kilmer 
 
To approve the April 17, 2013 minutes as printed. 
 
YES:   All-6 
NO:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
3.  Request for No Parking Zone – 1017 Milverton  
 
This item was withdrawn by the petitioner prior to the meeting. 
 
4.  Request for Traffic Control – English at Windmill 
 
Cathy Martin of 2765 English requested that the intersection of English at Windmill be 
reviewed for the purpose of installing a Stop or Yield sign on the northbound Windmill 
approach to English.  Ms. Martin states that traffic entering from Windmill does not yield 
or stop at the intersection before proceeding onto English creating a hazardous situation. 
 
Ms. Martin spoke in support of the request at the meeting.  She stated that she has been 



Traffic Committee Minutes – June 19, 2013  DRAFT 

Page 2 of 2 
 

nearly hit by northbound Windmill traffic two times.  Her husband has also been in a close 
call recently.  English is a school route and has a direct connection to Dequindre so it 
carries the most traffic.  Windmill is a dead end.  Ms. Martin stated that others in her 
neighborhood have also had close calls at the intersection. 
 
Mr. Ziegenfelder spoke in support of a Stop sign at this location. 
 
Mr. Halsey stated that the request has merit as he observed traffic at this location and 
also would support the installation of a Stop sign on the northbound Windmill approach to 
Windmill. 
 
RESOLUTION # 2013-06-09 
  
Moved by Halsey  
Seconded by Kilmer 
 
RESOLVED, that the Traffic Committee recommends that the intersection control be 
modified from “no traffic control” to a Stop sign on the Windmill Drive northbound 
approach to English Drive.  
 
YES:   All-6 
NO:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
5. Public Comment 
 
There was no additional public comment. 
 
6. Other Business 
 
Mr. Halsey reports that the traffic signal at the cross over on Rochester Road, just north of 
Big Beaver, is not functioning correctly and is creating backups. Traffic Engineering will 
forward the concern to the RCOC.   
 
Mr. Halsey requested that the sewer cut on Hartland, west of Rochester Road, be 
inspected.  He is concerned that the temporary pavement repair has settled and needs to 
be repaired or replaced.  Engineering will follow up on this concern. 
 
7. Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:03 p.m.  
 
                                          ___        
Pete Ziegenfelder, Chairperson    Bill Huotari, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2013\6_June 19\Minutes_20130619_DRAFT.docx 





 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:             July 3, 2013 
 
To:   Troy City Council Members       
  
From:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
 
Subject: Resolution to Schedule Public Hearing on Proposed Amendments to TDDA 

Development and Tax Increment Financing Plan   
 
 
 

 At the June 17, 2013 City Council meeting, City Council was presented with a 
proposal that is designed to prevent a default of the bonds issued by the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority (TDDA).  After discussion and deliberation, City 
Council completed the initial step of the proposed multi-phased procedure, and 
approved a notice of intent to issue bonds.  Next, on June 19, 2013, the TDDA 
considered the proposed 2013 amendments to the Development Plan and the Tax 
Increment Financing Plan, and approved the amendment and recommended its 
passage to the Troy City Council.   
 
 In order to meet the proposal’s scheduling deadlines, the Troy City Council would 
need to pass a resolution at the July 8, 2013 meeting, setting a public hearing to 
consider the proposed 2013 amendments to the TDDA Development Plan and Tax 
Increment Financing Plan.  This public hearing would be held on August 12, 2013.  
 
 Bond Counsel Terry Donnelly (Dickinson Wright) has prepared the attached 
resolution scheduling the public hearing on the TDDA Development Plan and Tax 
Increment Financing Plan amendment.   Once the public hearing date has been set, 
then City Administration will make the notifications required under the state statute.    
 

    
 
  

 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-08



 At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 

held on July 8, 2013. 

 

PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________ 

  _________________________________________________________________ 

  _________________________________________________________________ 

  _________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________ 

 

 The following resolution was moved by _________________________ and seconded by 

_________________________: 

 
RESOLUTION SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER 2013 AMENDMENTS TO 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN OF THE 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 197, Public Acts of Michigan, 1975, as amended (“Act 

197”), and Ordinance 78 adopted by the City Council on July 12, 1993, the City Council created 

the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”); and 

WHEREAS, to accomplish the purposes of Act 197, the DDA initially caused to be 

prepared and approved the DDA’s Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan (the 

“Plan”) and recommended approval of the Plan to the City Council; and  

WHEREAS, on December 13, 1993, the City Council, after notice and a public hearing 

on the Plan, adopted Ordinance 80, which approved the Plan, including the development area to 

which the Plan applies (the “Development Area”) in accordance with the requirements of Act 

197; and 

WHEREAS, since 1993 the Plan has been amended in 1998, 2000, 2002 (twice) and 

2007; and 



2 
 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted June 19, 2013, the DDA approved and recommended 

to the City Council approval of, further amendments to the Plan (the “2013 Plan Amendments”), 

in the form presented to this meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the 2013 Plan Amendments amend the Plan to include (a) the extension of 

the duration of the Plan to December, 2033, (b) the removal of certain properties from the 

Development Area and (c) the issuance of bonds by the City to pay certain of the costs of the 

development program set forth in the Tax Increment Financing Plan included in the Plan and in 

connection therewith, refund bonds previously issued by the DDA for such purpose; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 197, the City Council may consider the approval of the 2013 

Plan Amendments after conducting a public hearing with respect thereto upon giving such notice 

as required by Act 197; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to consider approval of the 2013 Plan Amendments 

and to set the time and date for a public hearing on the 2013 Plan Amendments and provide 

notice thereof as required by Act 197. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. That a public hearing be held on Monday, August 12, 2013, at 7:30 p.m., local 

time, or as soon as possible thereafter, at the Troy City Hall to consider the approval of the 2013 

Plan Amendments. 

2. That the City Clerk is directed to publish, post and mail notice of such hearing, in 

substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, in accordance with Section 18(1) of Act 197, 

and to take all other action necessary or desirable in connection with the public hearing. 

3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 

provisions of this resolution be and the same are rescinded. 



3 
 

 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 

Yes:  _________________________________________________________________ 

No:  _________________________________________________________________ 

Absent: _________________________________________________________________ 
 



4 
 

 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 
 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly 

adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 

held on July 8, 2013, the original of which resolution is on file in my office.  I further certify that 

notice of said meeting was given in accordance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act, 

Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended (MCL 15.261 et. seq.). 

 

 
 
       ___________________________________  

 M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
 Troy City Clerk 
  

 



5 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
CITY OF TROY 

OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING APPROVAL OF 2013 AMENDMENTS TO 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND TAX INCREMENT FINANCING PLAN OF THE 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
 PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Troy City Council will hold a public hearing on 
Monday, August 12, 2013, at 7:30 p.m. local time, or as soon as possible thereafter, at the Troy 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the City.  The hearing is to consider public opinion and 
comment on proposed amendments (the “2013 Plan Amendments”) to the Development Plan and 
Tax Increment Financing Plan (collectively, the “Plan”) of the Downtown Development 
Authority of the City of Troy (the “DDA”). 
 
 The proposed 2013 Plan Amendments include (a) the extension of the duration of the 
Plan to December, 2033, (b) the removal of certain properties from the Development Area for 
the Plan, and (c) the issuance of bonds by the City of Troy to finance a portion of the cost of the 
development program of the Tax Increment Financing Plan included in the Plan, and in 
connection therewith refund bonds previously issued by the DDA for such purpose. 
 
 All aspects of the 2013 Plan Amendments will be open for discussion at the public 
hearing.  The Troy City Council will also receive and consider written communications from 
persons wishing to express an opinion on the 2013 Plan Amendments.  Written comments should 
be addressed to the Troy City Clerk, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084, or sent by 
email to bittnera@troymi.gov, and should be received no later than August 9, 2013. 
 
 A copy of the 2013 Plan Amendments is available for public inspection at the office of 
the Troy City Clerk, Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan, during regular 
business hours. 
 
 This notice is given pursuant to the direction of the City Council of the City of Troy. 
 
 
       M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
       Troy City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
BLOOMFIELD 90528-10 1301847v1 

 



stewartc
Text Box
O-01a







PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 28, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:00 p.m. on May 28, 2013 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson Robert Schultz 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Gordon Schepke 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-05-040 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Kempen 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-05-041 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 14, 2013 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Schultz 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 28, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Krent gave a report on the May 21, 2013 Zoning Board of Appeals meeting. 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant gave a report on the May 15, 2013 Downtown Development Authority 
meeting. 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the June 11, 2013 Planning Commission Regular meeting 
agenda. 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Belleclaire Estates Site 

Condominium, 9 units/lots, East side of Rochester, North of Wattles, South side of 
Lamb, Section 14, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the application and recommended Preliminary Site Plan approval 
conditioned on the applicant satisfying two requirements as part of Final Site Plan 
approval, noted in his report dated May 23, 2013. 
 
Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties and Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering were 
present. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment.  There was no one present who wished 
to speak. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-05-042 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Belleclaire Estates Site 
Condominium, 9 units/lots, east of Rochester, north of Wattles, south side of Lamb, 
Section 14, within the R-1C (One Family Residential) District, be granted, subject to the 
following: 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 28, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

1. Provide five (5) additional trees along Belleclaire Drive. 
2. Provide seed mix for detention facility. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Schultz 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 
9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) – Sober Living 

Facilities 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the status of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
He addressed the direction and intent of City Council’s decision to remand the matter 
back to the Planning Commission for further study. 
 
Mr. Carlisle identified the following proposed options for consideration to address 
potential impact on single family residential properties and neighborhoods: 
 Permit use only in multiple-family residential, integrated business and office-mixed 

use districts. 
 Limit the maximum permitted residents per facility to 20. 
 Increase minimum lot area per resident from 2,500 square feet to 4,000 square feet. 

 
Discussion followed on: 
 City Council questions/comments. 
 Map identifying potential properties. 
 Rationale/justification for proposed options. 
 Review of proposed options, affirmation by Legal Department. 
 Acknowledgement of growing need for facilities. 
 Management, operation, supervision of facilities. 
 Regulatory action by the State in the future. 

 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Tom Telotte, operator of a sober living facility in another community, addressed 
concerns relating to limiting the number of residents per facility and increasing the 
minimum lot area per resident.  He addressed the management/operation of a facility. 
 
David Lord said the proposed options are excessively restrictive and the “numbers” have 
no rationale behind them.  He also addressed the management/operation of a facility.   
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to go forward with the proposed draft language as 
presented. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 28, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

Mr. Carlisle said public hearing draft language would be prepared and public hearings 
would be scheduled for both the Planning Commission and City Council. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced Frank Boudon, the Board’s new Student Representative.   
 
 

 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Final\2013 05 28 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JUNE 5, 2013 
 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on June 5, 2013 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Teresa Brooks 
Michael Carolan 
 
Members Absent: 
Brian Kischnick 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Moved by: Brooks 
Support by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 1, 2013 Regular meeting as submitted. 
 
Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, PAUL D’ANGELO, 854 BROOKLAWN – A variance to 

install a six (6’) foot high privacy fence in the twenty five (25’) foot required front 
setback along Witherbee where the fence height is limited to thirty (30”) inches. 
 
Mr. Grusnick gave a summary of the variance request.  Mr. Grusnick said a site 
inspection revealed an existing sixteen (16”) inch high retaining wall located along 
the property line adjacent to Witherbee would make a portion of the requested six 
(6’) foot high fence above the Zoning Ordinance height limit of six (6’) feet.  He said 
the applicant was notified and is offering a solution.  Mr. Grusnick reported the 
department received no responses to the public notice. 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01c



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JUNE 5, 2013 
 
 

2 
 

The applicant, Paul and Nicole D’Angelo, were present.  They addressed their 
concerns with privacy, security and traffic.  Mr. D’Angelo offered to either cut the 
fence height down to four (4’) feet eight (8”) inches, or to move the fence back five 
(5’) feet from the walkway and plant flower beds, shrubs and perennials. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Brooks 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance for the six (6’) foot high privacy fence with a five 
(5’) foot minimum setback from the face of the retaining wall along Witherbee. 
 
Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
B. VARIANCE REQUEST, JOHNNY AND ASHLEY HEANG, 2022 CHANCERY – A 

variance to install a six (6’) foot high privacy fence in the twenty five (25’) foot 
required front setback along John R where the fence height is limited to thirty (30”) 
inches. 
 
Mr. Grusnick gave a summary of the variance request.  Mr. Grusnick said a site 
inspection revealed a natural vegetation growth line along John R and asked if the 
applicant intends to keep the existing vegetation.  Mr. Grusnick reported the 
department received no responses to the public notice. 
 
The applicant, Johnny and Ashley Heang, were present.  They addressed their 
concerns with the traffic and safety of their family.  Ms. Heang indicated they would 
not disturb the natural growth line and would remove the existing chain link fence to 
create a uniform fence. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
The applicant was informed that a utility easement runs along John R. 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Brooks 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance at a minimum of seven (7’) feet from the John R 
frontage property line. 
 
Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT JUNE 5, 2013 
 
 

3 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None. 
 

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 3:30 p.m. 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
  
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
 
 
 
  
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\2013\Draft\2013 06 05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on June 11, 2013 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent (exited at 8:00 p.m.) 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Ryan Dinius, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-043 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-044 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 28, 2013 Special/Study meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
POSTPONED ITEMS 

 
5. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 401) – 

Proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed revisions to the site plan and specifically addressed the Code 
Enforcement report and proposed screening.  Mr. Carlisle finds the proposed screening 
to be sufficient.  He noted that because it is a Special Use application, the Board may 
require additional screening if it determines there is an additional need to protect public 
health, safety and welfare.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that the Board grant approval of 
the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan application with a condition that the east 
elevation door(s) remain closed except for access. 
 
Robert Stefani, representative of the applicant, and the applicant, Mark Hewines, were 
present.  Mr. Stefani stated the applicant has made a great effort to bring the site into 
compliance.  He confirmed that the back lot would be paved within 21-30 days. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed he forwarded to the Board the email message sent by Mr. 
Stefani regarding the lot paving. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Marvin Reinhardt, 1281 Dorre, Troy, addressed concerns with noise, traffic and air quality. 
 
Mike Damman of A. J. Damman Company, 1180 E. Big Beaver, Troy, agreed there have 
been improvements to the site.  He asked if approval could be subject to the completion of 
the asphalt and repair of the fence. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Mr. Savidant said there is no need to condition approval on the asphalt paving because 
it is noted on the site plan and compliance to the site plan is required prior to the 
issuance of any permits. 
 
Members Schultz and Edmunds indicated their preference to require a masonry wall on 
a portion of the south wall. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

Resolution # PC-2013-06-045 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, be granted, subject 
to the following conditions: 
 
1. East elevation doors to remain closed except for access purposes. 
 
Yes: Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Strat, Tagle 
No: Edwards, Schultz 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
6. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 404) – 

Proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple (1861 Birchwood), 
Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the revised plans and reported the City’s Traffic Consultant 
continues to find the site to be compromised in terms of circulation and maneuverability 
of trucks, and cited no specific number of vehicles or parking spaces that would be 
acceptable.  Based on those findings and that of the City’s Traffic Engineer, Mr. Carlisle 
recommended that the Board postpone the application to provide the applicant time to 
resubmit a site plan and other associated plans which reduce the proposed number of 
vehicles to be stored on site. 
 
Further, Mr. Carlisle brought attention to the notation on the site plan of a portable toilet 
located in the northeast corner of the parcel.  He indicated the applicant is open to the 
Board’s recommendation if a portable toilet would be required on site. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Potential future users. 
 Reduction of parking spaces. 
 Monitoring site for site plan compliance and code violations. 
 Purview of Planning Commission to require a portable toilet. 

 
The petitioner, John Wernis, and project engineer, Nathan Robinson of Horizon 
Engineering, were present.  The gentlemen addressed the ratio of employee parking to 
work vehicles, shuttle transportation of employees to the site, staggering crew work 
times and maneuverability plans. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-046 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple (1861 Birchwood), 
Section 26, currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, be granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A maximum of eight (8) work vehicles (truck/trailer combination) and a minimum of 

sixteen (16) parking spaces. 
2. Provide a portable toilet as noted on the site plan, and service and maintenance of 

same. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

7. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 407) – 
Proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles (3846 
Rochester), Section 23, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a report on the revised site plan.  He specifically addressed the 
proposed landscaping and angle and massing studies provided by the applicant.  Mr. 
Carlisle said the applicant addressed concerns with respect to the impact on single 
family residential and the compatibility on Rochester Road.  He said the site plan meets 
all the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that the Board 
grant approval of the Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use application. 
 
[Tom Krent exited meeting at 8:00 p.m.] 
 
The petitioner, Ed Hersch, and project architect, Joe Guido, were present. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

5 
 

The following persons spoke in opposition of the application. 
 William Jenuwine, 1274 Tennyson, Troy (circulated photograph representative of 5-

story building height in relation to single family home) 
 John Robertson, 3705 Hawthorne, Troy (questioned distribution of public comment at 

Public Hearing and minutes of Public Hearing meeting) 
 Kimberly Flaig, 1219 Judy, Troy (circulated photographs of existing buildings on 

Rochester, proposed building height in relation to height of existing flag pole) 
 Mark Dziadosz, 3819 Hawthorne, Troy 
 Mark Jones, 3771 Hawthorne, Troy 
 David Gottschack, 1205 Judy Drive, Troy 
 Dave Hummi, 3803 Hawthorne, Troy 
 Bill Touissen, 1289 Judy, Troy 
 Janice Hummi, 3803 Hawthorne, Troy 
 Susan DiMare-Smith, 1340 Burns, Troy 
 Krishna Chellemella, 3787 Hawthorne, Troy 
 Joni DiMare, 1205 Judy, Troy 
 Susan Brown, 1261 Judy, Troy 

 
Concerns expressed related to: 
 Height of building as relates to residential surroundings 
 Effect on property values 
 Outdoor storage 
 Shadowing effect 
 Traffic 
 Landscaping/screening 
 Public notification of Zoning Ordinance to allow 5-story buildings 
 Lighting 
 Existing vacant buildings; potential for vacant building in future 
 Setting a precedent for 5-story buildings 
 Site Plan approval and Code Enforcement 
 Parking on site 

 
Mr. Carlisle stated that outdoor storage is not a part of this application in front of the Board 
this evening and would require a separate Special Use approval.  He said with the 
exception of twelve exterior storage units, all storage units are accessed internally, 
minimizing the impact of traffic and parking on site. 
 
Mr. Savidant assured all public comment is provided to Board members and he would 
specifically address receipt and distribution of any public comment upon request.  Mr. 
Savidant announced that additional signatures to the petition in opposition that was 
submitted at the May 14, 2013 Public Hearing were presented to the Board this evening 
prior to the beginning of the meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

6 
 

Mr. Carlisle confirmed the photometric plan meets all requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance and the plan was display for public view during the meeting. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the procedures for Site Plan approval and code enforcement. 
 
Ms. Bluhm clarified that City administration is responsible for code enforcement and the 
Planning Commission and the City Council are separate from City administration. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Tagle requested a recess at 8:54 p.m.  The meeting reconvened at 9:00 p.m. 

___________ 
 
Chair Tagle and other Board members expressed empathy toward the concerns 
expressed by the residents this evening and at the Public Hearing on May 14.  It was 
declared that the application meets all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and the 
City would be subject to litigation should the application be denied. 
 
The residents were informed that many hours by the Planning Commission, City Council, 
administration, consultants, developers and residents were put into the writing of the 
Master Plan and Zoning Ordinance, and appropriate legal notification was given to the 
public on the adoption of both documents. 
 
Member Schultz asked if the Board could require the applicant to step down the height 
of the building as a condition to site plan approval. 
 
Ms. Bluhm replied the Board would have to find a special consideration to apply that 
condition to its approval. 
 
When asked by the Board, the applicant replied it would not be economically feasible to 
lower the height of the building from the proposed five stories. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-047 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles (3846 
Rochester), Section 23, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Krent 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

7 
 

8. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 406) – 
Proposed McDonald’s Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, South of Big Beaver (36895 
Dequindre), Section 25, Currently Zoned NN “B” (Neighborhood Node “B”) 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a report on the revised site plan.  He said the applicant has addressed 
all concerns expressed by the Board, and it is his recommendation to grant Preliminary 
Site Plan approval and Special Use approval with the condition to resubmit a 
photometric plan that is in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The petitioner and project architect, Frank Martin, was present.  Mr. Martin said he would 
provide a photometric plan that complies with the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-048 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed McDonald’s Restaurant improvements, West side of Dequindre, South of Big 
Beaver (36895 Dequindre), Section 25, Currently Zoned NN “B” (Neighborhood Node 
“B”), be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. Resubmit a photometric plan which complies with Article 13 of the Ordinance. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Krent 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SPECIAL USE AND REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 408) – Proposed Modern Kitchen/Bath-Tabak Stone, West side of John R, 
South of Big Beaver (2701-2703 John R), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated 
Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle introduced Ryan Dinius, planning intern for Carlisle/Wortman and 
Associates.  Mr. Carlisle reviewed the reported prepared by Mr. Dinius, specifically 
noting that an 8-foot high concrete wall is proposed when the requirement is 6 feet.  He 
asked the applicant to address this.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that the Board grant 
approval of the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan with a condition that the applicant 
submit a lighting photometric and fixtures plan at Final Site Plan approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

8 
 

Jim Butler of Professional Engineering Associates was present to represent the 
petitioner.  He asked consideration to install a 6-foot concrete wall, noting that the 
applicant is amenable to either height. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-049 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Modern Kitchen/Bath-Tabak Stone outdoor storage, West side of John R, 
South of Big Beaver (2701-2703 John R), Section 26, currently Zoned IB (Integrated 
Industrial and Business) District, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
, 
1. Submit lighting photometric and fixtures plan at Final Site Plan approval. 
2. Install a six (6’) foot concrete wall. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Krent 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 

 
 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:32 p.m. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

9 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 06 11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on June 11, 2013 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent (exited at 8:00 p.m.) 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Ryan Dinius, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Frank Boudon, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-043 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-044 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the May 28, 2013 Special/Study meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

bittnera
Text Box

bittnera
Text Box
O-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
POSTPONED ITEMS 

 
5. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 401) – 

Proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed revisions to the site plan and specifically addressed the Code 
Enforcement report and proposed screening.  Mr. Carlisle finds the proposed screening 
to be sufficient.  He noted that because it is a Special Use application, the Board may 
require additional screening if it determines there is an additional need to protect public 
health, safety and welfare.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that the Board grant approval of 
the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan application with a condition that the east 
elevation door(s) remain closed except for access. 
 
Robert Stefani, representative of the applicant, and the applicant, Mark Hewines, were 
present.  Mr. Stefani stated the applicant has made a great effort to bring the site into 
compliance.  He confirmed that the back lot would be paved within 21-30 days. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed he forwarded to the Board the email message sent by Mr. 
Stefani regarding the lot paving. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Marvin Reinhardt, 1281 Dorre, Troy, addressed concerns with noise, traffic and air quality. 
 
Mike Damman of A. J. Damman Company, 1180 E. Big Beaver, Troy, agreed there have 
been improvements to the site.  He asked if approval could be subject to the completion of 
the asphalt and repair of the fence. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Mr. Savidant said there is no need to condition approval on the asphalt paving because 
it is noted on the site plan and compliance to the site plan is required prior to the 
issuance of any permits. 
 
Members Schultz and Edmunds indicated their preference to require a masonry wall on 
a portion of the south wall. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

Resolution # PC-2013-06-045 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Midwest Industrial Metals Inc., 2222 Stephenson Highway, Section 26, 
currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, be granted, subject 
to the following conditions: 
 
1. East elevation doors to remain closed except for access purposes. 
 
Yes: Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Strat, Tagle 
No: Edwards, Schultz 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
6. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 404) – 

Proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple (1861 Birchwood), 
Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the revised plans and reported the City’s Traffic Consultant 
continues to find the site to be compromised in terms of circulation and maneuverability 
of trucks, and cited no specific number of vehicles or parking spaces that would be 
acceptable.  Based on those findings and that of the City’s Traffic Engineer, Mr. Carlisle 
recommended that the Board postpone the application to provide the applicant time to 
resubmit a site plan and other associated plans which reduce the proposed number of 
vehicles to be stored on site. 
 
Further, Mr. Carlisle brought attention to the notation on the site plan of a portable toilet 
located in the northeast corner of the parcel.  He indicated the applicant is open to the 
Board’s recommendation if a portable toilet would be required on site. 
 
There was discussion on: 
 Potential future users. 
 Reduction of parking spaces. 
 Monitoring site for site plan compliance and code violations. 
 Purview of Planning Commission to require a portable toilet. 

 
The petitioner, John Wernis, and project engineer, Nathan Robinson of Horizon 
Engineering, were present.  The gentlemen addressed the ratio of employee parking to 
work vehicles, shuttle transportation of employees to the site, staggering crew work 
times and maneuverability plans. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-046 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple (1861 Birchwood), 
Section 26, currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) District, be granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A maximum of eight (8) work vehicles (truck/trailer combination) and a minimum of 

sixteen (16) parking spaces. 
2. Provide a portable toilet as noted on the site plan, and service and maintenance of 

same. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

7. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 407) – 
Proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles (3846 
Rochester), Section 23, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a report on the revised site plan.  He specifically addressed the 
proposed landscaping and angle and massing studies provided by the applicant.  Mr. 
Carlisle said the applicant addressed concerns with respect to the impact on single 
family residential and the compatibility on Rochester Road.  He said the site plan meets 
all the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that the Board 
grant approval of the Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use application. 
 
[Tom Krent exited meeting at 8:00 p.m.] 
 
The petitioner, Ed Hersch, and project architect, Joe Guido, were present. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

5 
 

The following persons spoke in opposition of the application. 
 William Jenuwine, 1274 Tennyson, Troy (circulated photograph representative of 5-

story building height in relation to single family home) 
 John Robertson, 3705 Hawthorne, Troy (questioned distribution of public comment at 

Public Hearing and minutes of Public Hearing meeting) 
 Kimberly Flaig, 1219 Judy, Troy (circulated photographs of existing buildings on 

Rochester, proposed building height in relation to height of existing flag pole) 
 Mark Dziadosz, 3819 Hawthorne, Troy 
 Mark Jones, 3771 Hawthorne, Troy 
 David Gottschack, 1205 Judy Drive, Troy 
 Dave Hummi, 3803 Hawthorne, Troy 
 Bill Touissen, 1289 Judy, Troy 
 Janice Hummi, 3803 Hawthorne, Troy 
 Susan DiMare-Smith, 1340 Burns, Troy 
 Krishna Chellemella, 3787 Hawthorne, Troy 
 Joni DiMare, 1205 Judy, Troy 
 Susan Brown, 1261 Judy, Troy 

 
Concerns expressed related to: 
 Height of building as relates to residential surroundings 
 Effect on property values 
 Outdoor storage 
 Shadowing effect 
 Traffic 
 Landscaping/screening 
 Public notification of Zoning Ordinance to allow 5-story buildings 
 Lighting 
 Existing vacant buildings; potential for vacant building in future 
 Setting a precedent for 5-story buildings 
 Site Plan approval and Code Enforcement 
 Parking on site 

 
Mr. Carlisle stated that outdoor storage is not a part of this application in front of the Board 
this evening and would require a separate Special Use approval.  He said with the 
exception of twelve exterior storage units, all storage units are accessed internally, 
minimizing the impact of traffic and parking on site. 
 
Mr. Savidant assured all public comment is provided to Board members and he would 
specifically address receipt and distribution of any public comment upon request.  Mr. 
Savidant announced that additional signatures to the petition in opposition that was 
submitted at the May 14, 2013 Public Hearing were presented to the Board this evening 
prior to the beginning of the meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

6 
 

Mr. Carlisle confirmed the photometric plan meets all requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance and the plan was display for public view during the meeting. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the procedures for Site Plan approval and code enforcement. 
 
Ms. Bluhm clarified that City administration is responsible for code enforcement and the 
Planning Commission and the City Council are separate from City administration. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Tagle requested a recess at 8:54 p.m.  The meeting reconvened at 9:00 p.m. 

___________ 
 
Chair Tagle and other Board members expressed empathy toward the concerns 
expressed by the residents this evening and at the Public Hearing on May 14.  It was 
declared that the application meets all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and the 
City would be subject to litigation should the application be denied. 
 
The residents were informed that many hours by the Planning Commission, City Council, 
administration, consultants, developers and residents were put into the writing of the 
Master Plan and Zoning Ordinance, and appropriate legal notification was given to the 
public on the adoption of both documents. 
 
Member Schultz asked if the Board could require the applicant to step down the height 
of the building as a condition to site plan approval. 
 
Ms. Bluhm replied the Board would have to find a special consideration to apply that 
condition to its approval. 
 
When asked by the Board, the applicant replied it would not be economically feasible to 
lower the height of the building from the proposed five stories. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-047 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed 1-800 Mini Storage, East side of Rochester, South of Wattles (3846 
Rochester), Section 23, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Krent 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

7 
 

8. SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 406) – 
Proposed McDonald’s Restaurant, West side of Dequindre, South of Big Beaver (36895 
Dequindre), Section 25, Currently Zoned NN “B” (Neighborhood Node “B”) 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a report on the revised site plan.  He said the applicant has addressed 
all concerns expressed by the Board, and it is his recommendation to grant Preliminary 
Site Plan approval and Special Use approval with the condition to resubmit a 
photometric plan that is in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
The petitioner and project architect, Frank Martin, was present.  Mr. Martin said he would 
provide a photometric plan that complies with the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Chair Tagle opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Tagle closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-048 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed McDonald’s Restaurant improvements, West side of Dequindre, South of Big 
Beaver (36895 Dequindre), Section 25, Currently Zoned NN “B” (Neighborhood Node 
“B”), be granted, subject to the following condition: 
 
1. Resubmit a photometric plan which complies with Article 13 of the Ordinance. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Krent 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SPECIAL USE AND REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 408) – Proposed Modern Kitchen/Bath-Tabak Stone, West side of John R, 
South of Big Beaver (2701-2703 John R), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated 
Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle introduced Ryan Dinius, planning intern for Carlisle/Wortman and 
Associates.  Mr. Carlisle reviewed the reported prepared by Mr. Dinius, specifically 
noting that an 8-foot high concrete wall is proposed when the requirement is 6 feet.  He 
asked the applicant to address this.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that the Board grant 
approval of the Special Use and Preliminary Site Plan with a condition that the applicant 
submit a lighting photometric and fixtures plan at Final Site Plan approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 11, 2013 
  
 
 

8 
 

Jim Butler of Professional Engineering Associates was present to represent the 
petitioner.  He asked consideration to install a 6-foot concrete wall, noting that the 
applicant is amenable to either height. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-06-049 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Modern Kitchen/Bath-Tabak Stone outdoor storage, West side of John R, 
South of Big Beaver (2701-2703 John R), Section 26, currently Zoned IB (Integrated 
Industrial and Business) District, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
, 
1. Submit lighting photometric and fixtures plan at Final Site Plan approval. 
2. Install a six (6’) foot concrete wall. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Hutson, Krent 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 

 
 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:32 p.m. 
 





 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:             June, 17 2013 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
 Steve Burns, Building Official, SAFEbuilt 
 Mitch Grusnick, City Building Official 
 
Subject: Building Department Activity Report – May, 2013 
 
 
 
The following attachment contains a summary of permit activity, project valuation for the 
Building Inspection Department from January 2012 to May 2013. Permit activity and 
inspections have continued to remain steady.  
 
We have issued 231 building permits for the year so far. Year to date project valuations thru 
February are at $50,713,508. Compared to May 2012 we issued 243 building permits that had 
a valuation of $46,275,579.  
 
  
   
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Building Department Activity Report, January 2012 thru May 2013. 
 

 
Preparer of memo\File name\File location 

bittnera
Text Box
O-02a



BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING
PERMITS VALUATION PERMIT PERMITS VALUATION PERMIT

2012 2012 REVENUE 2012 2013 2013 REVENUE 2013

JANUARY 77 $7,124,788.00 $165,958.59 134 17,779,504.00$  $325,899.80

FEBRUARY 95 9,389,991.00$    160,308.24$       85 4,917,385.00$    147,780.63$      

MARCH 151  $   6,931,863.00 201,917.53$       119  $   8,792,342.00 214,333.92$      

APRIL 165 11,266,382.00$  245,615.15$       139  $   7,893,210.00 183,511.89$      

MAY 243 11,559,555.00$  281,126.31$       231  $ 11,331,067.00 282,130.55$      

JUNE 180 7,633,262.00$    216,532.32$       

JULY 189 15,233,416.00$  328,465.63$       

AUGUST 213 14,438,447.00$  328,960.94$       

SEPTEMBER 169 15,280,341.00$  284,069.97$       

OCTOBER 214 19,018,536.00$  310,992.21$       

NOVEMBER 144 13,959,463.00$  188,185.35$       

DECEMBER 115 4,389,275.00$    150,134.05$       

TOTAL 1955 $136,225,319.00 $2,862,266.29 708 $50,713,508.00 $1,153,656.79

BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

bittnera
Text Box
O-02a



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  June 27, 2013 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 

Carol Anderson, Director of Recreation 
Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, & Drains 
Elaine S. Bo, Recreation Supervisor 

    
Subject: Report : Park and Recreation Month  
 
 

 
Parks and Recreation Month 
Since 1985 the month of July has been designated Park and Recreation month by the National Parks 
and Recreation Association.  The purpose is to bring awareness to the social, economical and 
environmental benefits of parks and recreation. 
 
The recreation department, in cooperation with the parks department has many activities 
programmed throughout the year but in July, there are special promotions intended to highlight Parks 
and Recreation month. 
 
Attached please find information about some of the activities during the month of July. 
 
Parks and recreation activities promote the City of Troy, create a sense of community, improve the 
public perception of the city, have an economic impact as well as benefit individuals and families.  
 
All members of our community are invited to participate in these events.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ESB\06.27.13 – PR Month Agenda item 

bittnera
Text Box
O-02b



July is Park and Recreation Month 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

 1 2 3 
Wacky Wednesdays 
All day passes are  
$4 each 
12-8 pm 

4 

RECREATION 
DEPT Closed  

5 

60+ Senior Fridays 
$3/person 
Indoor pool  
8-10:00 am 
Gym/Fitness room  

6 

 
Family Night at 

TFAC 
5-7:30 pm 

7 

TFAC Season 
Passholder Swim 
Night  
7:30-9:30 pm 

8 9 10 

Wacky Wednesdays 
All day passes are  
$4 each 
12-8 pm 

11 12 

60+ Senior Fridays 
$3/person 
Indoor pool  
8-10:00 am 
Gym/Fitness room  

13 

 
Family Night at 

TFAC 
5-7:30 pm 

14 15 

 
It’s not too late to 
register your child 
for Day Camp! 

16 17 

Wacky Wednesdays 
All day passes are  
$4 each 
12-8 pm 

18 19 

60+ Senior Fridays 
$3/person 
Indoor pool 8-10 am 
Gym/Fitness room  

8-11:30 am 

Luau Splash Night 
at TFAC @ 8 pm 

20 

 
Family Night at 

TFAC 
5-7:30 pm 

21 

Grandparent  
Special Rate  
Package begins! 

22 23 24 

Wacky Wednesdays 
All day passes are   
$4 each 
12-8 pm 

25 26 
60+ Senior Fridays 
$3/person 
Indoor pool  
8-10:00 am 
Gym/Fitness room  

27 
Family Night at 

TFAC 
5-7:30 pm 

 

28 29 30 31 

Wacky Wednesdays 
All day passes are  
$4 each   
12-8 pm 

   

3179 Livernois Rd 
Troy, MI  48083 
248.524.3484 
www.troymi.gov/Recreation 

City of Troy Recreation Dept 
Troy Community Center 

Wacky Wednesdays! 
July 3-August 21 

All day passes are $4 each.  Resi-
dent and Non-residents pay the 
same rate.  Valid  12-8 pm at the 
Community Center. 

Too Hot to Touch! 
Grandparent  Special Rate Package: July 21-27 

 

$9 for one adult & 2 grandkids. 
Extra adults: $5/each;  grandkid (ages 3-12): $2/each 

  

(Residents and Non-Residents, same price; price is for a one day visit) 

Family Nights at  
Troy Family Aquatic Center 

Every Saturday, June-August 
5-7:30 pm 

 

Family 4 Pack: 
$10 for Residents 

$14 for Non-Residents 

Additional child/(ren): 
$2.50/Resident 

$3.50/Non-Residents 

These events are FREE for TFAC 
Annual members.  

 



July is Park and Recreation Month! 
Since 1985, America has celebrated July as the nation’s official Park and Recreation Month.  

There are many ways you can participate: 

July 1-31 at the Recreation Department: Enter to win guest passes to the Troy Family Aquatic Center or the Community Center by completing an “I 
Love my Park and Recreation” form.  Winners each week! 

 

 
Enjoy the Outdoors! Spend time with your friends and family enjoying the outdoors in any of our 15 parks.  

 

Troy Family Aquatic Center’s Luau Splash Night - July 19, 8-10 pm: $5/person 

Wacky Wednesdays at the Community Center! July 3-31: Each Wednesday between July 3-31, we will be charging  a wacky rate of $4 per person      
between 12-8 pm.  Price valid for both residents and non-residents. 
 

TFAC and Community Center indoor pool Summer Celebration Week: July 7-13   
A week full of fun-filled activities for everyone!  Flyers available in late June. 

July 4th Holiday Hours 
 

Recreation Office: Closed 

Kids Korner: Closed 

Community/Fitness Center: 
Fitness Room & Gym 7 am-2 pm 
Adult Lap/therapy 7:15-10 am 
Open Swim  10 am-1 pm  
 

July 5th  
Open Regular Business hours 

NEW!! 
Text/Email Alerts to your mobile device 
Receive the weather updates you need for your outdoor pro-
gram right to your mobile device.  Visit www.troymi.gov and 
select the green NEWS box at the top center.  Using the drop 
down arrow, choose either text alert or email alert. Select to 
receive one or all of the following alerts: “Recreation 
Weather Updates”, “Troy Family Aquatic Center Weather 
Updates”, or “Recreation Alerts” (which would include the 
Recreation Dept and Community Center programs/events). 



 

Since 1985, America has celebrated  
July as the nation’s official  

Park and Recreation Month.  
 

There are many ways you  

can participate: 
 

July 1-31 at the Recreation Department 
Enter to win guest passes to the Troy Family Aquatic Center or the Community 
Center by completing an “I Love my Park and Recreation” form.  Winners each 
week! 

 

Enjoy the Outdoors! 
Spend time with your friends and family enjoying the outdoors  

in any of our 15 parks.  
 

 

Luau Splash Night 
July 19, Troy Family Aquatic Center, 8-10 pm; $5/person 

 

 

Wacky Wednesdays at the Community Center!  July 3-31 
Each Wednesday between July 3-31, we will be charging  a wacky rate of $4 per 
person between 12-8 pm.  Price valid for both residents and non-residents. 

 

TFAC and Community Center indoor pool  
Summer Celebration Week: July 7-13   

A week full of fun-filled activities for everyone!  Flyers available in June. 

 

Like us on Facebook to stay connected year round! 

City of Troy Parks and Recreation Departments invite you to... 



1

Beth L Tashnick

Subject: FW: Customer Service Letter

From: larry chiapelli [mailto:lchiapel2@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2013 4:19 PM 
To: Glenn C Lapin 
Cc: Paul M Evans 
Subject: meeting today - ggs sign and area blight 
 
  
Glad we could finally meet to talk about the sign proposal and area blight. I kind of figured that sign-in-the-
easement idea wasn't going to fly, but am thankful the city at least considered my plan for curbside decoration 
with flowers. 
  
I did contact the "permits" department, for the county, and Denetta Brew (248.858.4835) said I will not need a 
permit to make that 2 ft. strip of flowers along that easement. As long as it doesn't involve me being in the 
road (e.g., work is done on grass, beyond curb), then a permit is not required. 
  
I'm going forward with Plan B, whereas I do my curved swaths on either side of my drive. I was also going to 
incorporate your idea, Paul, about the strip using vibrant colors. I'm going to fix that front so nice--it's going to 
really stand out. Excellent idea! 
  
Anyway, thanks again for meeting with me today. I appreciate how well I was treated, not only as a concerned, 
Troy, resident, but as an individual conducting business in this city. You guys could be real sticklers with me, 
but you've always supported my family farm. It shows real class indeed. 
  
Take care and hope for warm weather. Jeeeessshh! 
  
                                               ----(¯`v´¯)------(¯`v´¯)---- 
Larry Chiapelli              ---(¯`(O)´¯)---(¯`(O)´¯)--- 
Owner of Gramma's Gardens         -----(_.^._)------(_.^._)---- 
                                             --------|/--------------|/------- 

stewartc
Text Box
O-03a



stewartc
Text Box
O-03b



stewartc
Text Box
O-05





bittnera
Text Box
O-06


	20130708 Agenda.pdf
	July 8, 2013 Agenda
	Cover Memo
	Mission Statement & Goals
	Agenda: Return to 1st Page
	Explanation Booklet: Return to 1st Page
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 39th Annual Troy Garden Club’s Garden Walk (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart)
	C-2 Proclamation Celebrating Parks & Recreation Month – July, 2013 (Introduced by: Carol Anderson)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments - None
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council Nominations – Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee, Zoning Board of Appeals
	I-3 No Request for Closed Session
	I-4 Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) Sustainable Community Recognition Program (Introduced by: Stephanie Dilworth)
	I-5 Rescind and Re-Award Catering Contract for Community Center Events (Introduced by: Carol Anderson)
	I-6 Contract Ratification – American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (Introduced by: Peggy Sears)

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – June 17, 2013

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations
	a) Proclamation Celebrating Parks & Recreation Month – July, 2013

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Sale of Real Estate – 3545 Rochester Road and Colebrook

	J-5 Waiver of Bid for Purchase of Grounds Maintenance Equipment
	J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Pine Creek Ridge Site Condominiums – Project No. 03.907.3
	J-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – June 19, 2013
	J-8 Resolution to Schedule Public Hearing on Proposed Amendments to Troy Downtown Development Authority (TDDA) Development and Tax Increment Financing Plan

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Traffic Committee-Final-April 17, 2013
	b) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final-May 28, 2013
	c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-June 5, 2013
	d) Planning Commission-Draft-June 11, 2013
	e) Planning Commission-Final-June 11, 2013

	O-2 Department Reports:
	a) Building Department Activity Report – May, 2013
	b) Parks and Recreation Month Report

	O-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Glenn Lapin and Paul Evans from Larry Chiapelli, Owner of Gramma’s Gardens
	b) To Chief Mayer from Maureen Rider for Assistance in Handling a Complaint

	O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	O-5 Notice of Hearing for the Customers of DTE Electric Company – Case No. U-17302
	O-6 Charlene Femminineo v City of Troy et. al.

	P. STUDY ITEMS:
	P-1  No Study Items

	Q. CLOSED SESSION:
	Q-1 No Closed Session Requested

	R. ADJOURNMENT:




